
 
 

1 of 2 
 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, September 6, 2023 – 2:00pm 

IN-PERSON  
Monterey One Water Board Room 

5 Harris Court, Building “D”, Ryan Ranch, Monterey, California 
 
Watermaster Board 
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno 
City of Seaside – Mayor Ian Oglesby, Chair 
California American Water – Director Christopher Cook 
City of Sand City – Mayor Mary Ann Carbone, Vice Chair 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District – Director George Riley 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Director John Gaglioti, Treasurer 
City of Monterey – Councilmember Kim Barber 
City of Del Rey Oaks – Councilmember Kim Shirley 
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Supervisor Wendy Root Askew, District 4 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS  
Oral communications are on each meeting agenda in order to provide members of the public an 
opportunity to address the Watermaster on matters within its jurisdiction.  Matters not appearing on the 
agenda will not receive action at this meeting but may be referred to the Watermaster Administrator or 
may be set for a future meeting.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes or as otherwise 
established by the Watermaster.  In order that the speaker may be identified in the minutes of the 
meeting, it is helpful if speakers use the microphone and state their names.  
 

IV. REVIEW OF AGENDA 
A vote may be taken to add to the agenda an item that arose after the 72-hour posting deadline pursuant 
to the requirements of Government Code Section 54954.2(b).  (A 2/3-majority vote is required). 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR  
A. Minutes of Regular Board meeting held July 5, 2023 ...........................................................................3 
B. Summary of Payments made June through July 2023 totaling $23,891.40 ...........................................5 
C. Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Reports through July 31, 2023 ...................................................................7 
D. Summary of Flow Direction Flow Velocity Analyses .........................................................................13 

 
VI. ORAL PRESENTATION – None  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
VII. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Consider Approving Supplemental Cost-Sharing Agreement for Monitoring Well FO-9 Shallow 
Replacement Well Installation .............................................................................................................29 

B. Consider Approving Technical Advisory Committee holding meetings via Zoom ............................45 



2 of 2 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS
A. Consider Approving Fiscal Year 2024 Annual Budgets:

1. Proposed Fiscal Year 2024 (January–December) Administrative Budget ....................................47 
2. Proposed Fiscal Year 2024 (January–December) Monitoring and Management Program

(M&MP); and M&MP Fund-Operations and M&MP Fund-Capital Budgets ..............................49 
3. Proposed 2024 Replenishment Assessment Fund Budget – No Action Required .........................65 

B. Consider Approving the Proposed 2024 Replenishment Assessment Unit Costs for Natural Safe
Yield and Operating Yield Overproduction .........................................................................................67 

IX. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (No Action Required)
A. Correspondence from Watermaster to Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency

requesting the Seaside Subbasin be included as one of the end users of any water that would be
generated by the desalination component of the Seawater Intrusion Extraction Barrier and
Desalination Project .............................................................................................................................71 

B. Watermaster Report of Production of the Seaside Basin through 3rd Quarter Water Year 2023
(January 1, 2023 – June 30, 2023) .......................................................................................................73 

C. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) draft meeting minutes August 9, 2023 ..................................75 
D. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Monthly Updates April – July 2023 ..............................83 

X. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS

XI. STAFF COMMENTS

XII. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE
A. Consider cancelling the October and November 2023 board meetings and setting the next regular

meeting date for Wednesday, December 6, 2023 - 2:00 P.M.

XIII. CLOSED SESSION
A. A closed session is planned for Technical Program Manager and Administrative Officer performance

evaluations.

XIV. ADJOURNMENT
This agenda was forwarded via e-mail to the City Clerks of Seaside, Monterey, Sand City and Del Rey Oaks; the Clerk of the Monterey Board of Supervisors, the Clerk 
to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District; the Clerk at the Monterey County Water Resources Agency, Monterey One Water and the California American 
Water Company for posting on or before August 31, 2023 per the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Section 54954.2(a). 

If requested, the agenda and documents in the agenda packet shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by 
Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 

2



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, July 5, 2023 In-Person 
Monterey One Water Board Room 

5 Harris Court, Building “D”, Ryan Ranch, Monterey, California 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Oglesby called the meeting to order at 2:05p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Director John Gaglioti 
City of Seaside – Mayor Ian Oglesby  
City of Sand City – Mayor Mary Ann Carbone 
California American Water (CAW) – Director Chris Cook 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) – Director George Riley 
City of Monterey – Council Member Kim Barber 
City of Del Rey Oaks – Council Member Kim Shirley 
Absent:  Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Supervisor Wendy Root Askew 
 Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno 
Others Present: 
Laura Paxton, Watermaster Administrative Officer (AO)  
Joseph Hughes, Watermaster Legal Counsel 
Jonathan Lear, MPWMD 
Sheri Damon, City Attorney, City of Seaside 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS – There were no public communications. 

IV. REVIEW OF AGENDA – There were no requested changes to the agenda. 
 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR  
A. Minutes of Regular Board meeting held March 1, 2023 
B. Summary of Payments made February through May 2023 totaling $52,918.33 
C. Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Reports through May 31, 2023 
D. Consider Ratifying Central Coast Surveyors RFS No. 2023-01 for conducting corner search and ties, 

calculations, preparing legal description and plat exhibit for new easement from City of Seaside in 
preparation for replacing Monitoring Well FO-9 Shallow 
 
It was moved by Mayor Carbone, seconded by Council Member Barber, and unanimously 
carried 6-0 to approve consent agenda as presented. 

 
Director Gaglioti arrived at the meeting after this vote. 

 
VI. ORAL PRESENTATION – None 

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS – None  

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consider approving Professional Services Contract with the firm Klein, DeNatale, Goldner, Cooper, 
Rosenlieb and Kimball, LLP to provide Watermaster supplemental legal services  

 

3



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, July 5, 2023 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

Ms. Paxton provided the draft agreement for legal services and introduced Joseph Hughes, point 
person from the firm recommended by staff to be Watermaster legal counsel. Mr. Hughes has 30+ 
years of experience as a water lawyer with water districts, groundwater sustainability agencies, and 
river programs. He has not represented adjudicated basins however has experience with those 
adjacent to his clients’ basins. He will not charge travel as his car is his mobile office and he 
arranges to meet with other clients here when traveling to this area. There was no public comment. 
It was moved by Director Riley, seconded by Director Cook, and unanimously carried 7-0 to 
approve the Legal Services Agreement with the firm Klein, DeNatale, Goldner, Cooper, 
Rosenlieb and Kimball, LLP for Watermaster supplemental legal services, and Request for 
Services (RFS) 2023-01 that covers the remainder of 2023. 
 

IX. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (No Action Required) 
A. Status Report on Well ASR-1 Issues  

Director Riley requested discussion on the item. Director Cook responded to Director Riley stating 
extraction wells 1 through 4 are planned for additional supply; wells 1 and 2 are approximately two 
years out. They would not replace the ASR-1 well used primarily for storage. Director Riley felt that 
the dispute over use of ASR-1 has no relevance anymore—what happened has happened. Director 
Cook gave a brief history of the travel time issue with the Pure Water Monterey project, and CAW’s 
position at the time of needing to extract as much as possible during the drought to supply 
customers. Since experiencing the wet winter and replenishment of Carmel River aquifers, and with 
ASR-4 expected on line in mid-July and if it operates as designed, it is hopeful the ASR-1 well 
discussion can now be more on moving forward than looking back. Technical Program Manager, 
Bob Jaques provided Status Report on Well ASR-1 Issues on his own accord, with no contact or 
consultation with Director Cook, apparently in an effort to inform the board on all issues he deems 
pertinent to basin management. Director Cook did not feel the board needed to consider any action.  
Director Riley felt the memorandum narrative highlighted the potential for conflict instead of the 
potential for resolution, and felt it not relevant to plans now underway. Director Shirley felt the 
narrative was slightly biased, that focus should be on maximizing injection, and that extraction 
issues should be secondary. Director Cook responded to Council Member Barber regarding mercury 
treatment at ASR-4, hopeful it will not be a long-term cost; Council Member Barber would like 
further discussion on who would bear the cost of long-term treatment if it comes to that.  
Chair Oglesby appreciated Director Cook’s responses however advised that official statements from 
CAW are what is to be received by the board for discussion or action consideration.  

B. Watermaster Report of Production of the Seaside Basin through 2nd Quarter Water Year 2023 
(January 1, 2023 – March 31, 2023) 

X. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS – Director Riley requested the board meeting calendar each year anticipate 
meetings that are not needed and only list those that are. Special meetings can be held if needed. 

XI. STAFF COMMENTS – There were no staff comments. 
XII. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE – It was moved by Director Gaglioti, seconded by Director 

Riley, and unanimously carried 7-0 to cancel August 2, 2023 Watermaster regular board meeting. 
A. Next meeting Wednesday, September 6, 2023 – 2:00 p.m. 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:42 p.m. 
Respectfully submitted by Laura Paxton, Board Secretary 

4



ITEM V.B.
9/6/23

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Laura Paxton, AO
DATE: September 6, 2023
SUBJECT: Summary of Payments made June through July 2023

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Paxton Associates (Administrative Officer (AO)) 51.5 @110 5,665.00$         
May 26 through June 25, 2023 

33.5 @150 5,025.00$         

Montgomery & Associates (Technical Consultant) 4.0 $228/hr 912.00$            
8.5 182 1,547.00           
5.5 $118 649.00              

$1,130 + 10% 1,243.00           
4,351.00$         

Total for June 2023 15,041.00$       

Responded to telephone inquiries, e-mail, and other correspondence as needed regarding the Seaside Basin; 
prepare board orientation workshop historical document/orientation binders/prep for/attend orientation 
workshop June 7th; confer with Jaques about various issues; collect/follow up/post production and level 
reporting; confer with legal counsel candidate Hughes/prepare contract docs; follow up on collection services 
& replenishment assessment payments to WM; draft 7/5 board and ad hoc committee meeting agendas & 
begin assembling packets; prepare Feb-May financials and summary of payments; complete 3/1 board 
meeting minutes;  Routinely picked up mail from PO Box; reconciled accounts to the City of Seaside 
Watermaster accounts; prepared financial reports; processed invoices; reviewed and posted items to web site.

Responded to emails, telephone inquiries, and other correspondence on a variety of Watermaster issues;  
inspect contractor damage to Sentinel Well #4; pickup FO-9 Well Permit @ Seaside City Hall; contact M.
Feeney re: Sentinel Well #4 damage; attend Board orientation meeting @ Supv. Askew's office;
prepare FO-9 Well Notice of Exemption and send to City of Seaside for them to file; meet at Sentinel Well #4 
w/ MPE and Newman Well Surveys to video inspect the well for cause of blockage; send M. Feeney info to 
A. Sterbenz re: SBWM #4 damage; review notes from 4/18/23 SVBGSA Groundwater TAC
meeting re: SWI Model; work on 2024 M&MP; discuss cost-sharing agreement for FO-9 w/ P. Breen of
MCWD & prepare supplemental agreement; discuss Watermaster issues w/ L. Paxton; discuss issues w/G. 
Riley; attend 6/28 PWM stakeholder meeting; review/approve invoices; prepare board meeting transmittals; 
prepare TAC agenda packet.

May 1 through May 31, 2023

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER

Consider approving payment of bills submitted and authorized to be paid June through July 2023

Robert Jaques (Technical Program Manager)
June 1 through June 30, 2023     

Summary of Payments Made June 2023

RFS 2022-05 & 2023-03, F-09 Well Installation
Expenses: Subtronic Corp Professional Services

5



Chris Campbell, Baker Manock & Jensen (WM Legal Counsel) 0.2 200 40.00                
April 11, 2023 Telephone & postage 0.40                  

40.40$              

Paxton Associates (Administrative Officer (AO)) 38.5 @110 4,235.00$         
June 26 through July 25, 2023 

26.5 @150 3,975.00$         

Martin B. Feeney, PG CHg Consulting Hyrogeologist 3.0 $200/hr 600.00$            

Total for July 2023 8,850.40$         

RFS 2023-01, Hydrogeologic Consulting
Sentinel Well #4 repair guidance

Interoffice conference with Mr. Campbell regarding recent legislative revisions to the Brown Act related to 
virtual/remote participation.

May - July 2023

Summary of Payments Made July 2023

Responded to telephone inquiries, e-mail, and other correspondence as needed regarding the Seaside Basin; 
prepare 7/5 Board & Ad Hoc Committee meeting packets/distribute; deposit ops assessment revenue at 
Seaside; prep for/attend 7/5 Board and Ad Hoc Com meeting; set 8/21 B&F Com meeting date w/Seaside; 
legal contract to WM Chair for signature; contact Hansford for potential replenishment funding feasibility 
services; cancel 8/2 Board meeting; assign Hughes to funding mechanism research/ provide copious 
documents for reference; confer with Jaques about various issues; routinely picked up mail from PO Box; 
reconciled accounts to the City of Seaside Watermaster accounts; prepared financial reports; processed 
invoices; reviewed and posted items to web site.

Robert Jaques (Technical Program Manager)
July 1 through July 31, 2023     

Responded to emails, telephone inquiries, and other correspondence on a variety of Watermaster issues;  
review Deep Aquifer Study Power Point slides from A. Ostevar for upcoming GTAC meeting; review State 
Parks documents for SBWM Sentinel Wells @ Fort Ord in prep for annual renewal of entry permit; discuss 
WM issues w/ T. O'Halloran of Cal Am; discuss FO-9 issues w/ B. DeBoer; edit 2024 M&MP per TAC 
meeting input; prepare 2024 M&MP budgets; Telecon w/ M. Feeney re: 2024 induction logging budget;  
discuss Watermaster issues w/ L. Paxton; review/approve invoices; prepare TAC meeting minutes; prepare 
monthly meetings summary; attend 7/27 SVBGSA-related meeting.

6



 

ITEM V.C.
9/6/23

2023 
 Adopted 
Budget 

October 5, 
2022

Contract Amount
Year to Date 

Revenue / 
Expenses

Available Balances & Assessments
Other Assessments -                   
FY (Rollover) 39,500.00        55,111.67         
Admin Assessments 60,500.00        51,788.00         

Available 100,000.00      106,899.67       

Expenses
Contract Staff 60,000.00        60,000.00          25,195.00         
PAC / 3D Basin Modeling 3,000.00          3,000.00            2,610.00           
Legal Counsel 12,000.00        20,000.00          -                    
Filing fees and postage -                    

Total Expenses 75,000.00        83,000.00          27,805.00         

Total Available 25,000.00        

Dedicated Reserve 25,000.00        -                    

Net Available -                   79,094.67         

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
 Budget vs. Actual Administrative Fund

 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2023)
Balance through July 31, 2023

7



 

ITEM V.C
9/6/23

2023 Adopted 
Budget

Contract 
Encumbrance

Year to Date 
Revenue/Expenses

Available Balances & Assessments
Operations Fund Assessment 274,930.00$          -$                            274,930.00$             
Pass Through -                              3,678.00                   
FY 2022 Rollover (estimated) 50,000.00              -                              50,000.00                 

Total Available 324,930.00$          -$                            328,608.00$             

Appropriations & Expenses
GENERAL

Technical Project Manager* 75,000.00$            75,000.00$                 32,475.00$               
Contingency @ 10% (not including TPM ) 32,600.00              -                              

Total General 107,600.00$          75,000.00$                 32,475.00$               

CONSULTANTS (Montgomery; Web Site Database)
Program Administration 22,744.00$            
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 8,600.00                
Basin Management 70,000.00              
Seawater Intrusion Analysis Report 27,176.00              27,176.00                   -                            

Total Consultants 128,520.00$          52,320.00$                 5,717.83$                 

MPWMD
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 49,754.00$            64,297.00                   -                            
Pass Through 2023 20,042.00              -                              -                            
Basin Management -                         -                            
Seawater Intrusion -                         -                              -                            
Direct Costs -                         -                              -                            

Total MPWMD 69,796.00$            64,297.00$                 -$                          

CONTRACTOR (Martin Feeney)
Hydrogeologic Consulting Services 4,000.00$              4,000.00                     -                            
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 11,014.00              11,013.30                   -                            

15,014.00$            15,013.30$                 -$                          

CONTRACTOR (Todd Groundwater)
Hydrogeologic Consulting Services 4,000.00$              4,000.00$                   -                            

Total Appropriations & Expenses 324,930.00$          210,630.30$               38,192.83$               

Total Available -                         290,415.17               

 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2023)
Balance through July 31, 2023

                                                Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
                           Budget vs. Actual Monitoring & Management - Operations Fund

25,144.00$                 5,717.83$                 

8



 

2023 Adopted 
Budget 

December 7, 2022
Contract 

Encumbrance

Year to Date 
Revenue / 
Expense

Available Balances and Assessments:
Monitoring & Management Fund - Capital 240,000$                 -$                  
FY 2022 carryover 66,667                     66,667          
Transfer out to Operations Fund -                               -                    

Subtotal                    306,667           66,667 
Appropriations & Expenses:

Professional Services
Project Management -                               23,600          * 16,318          

Subtotal -                               23,600          16,318          
Direct Costs

Well Drilling - 240,000                   ** 258,197        1,800            
Subtotal 240,000                   258,197        1,800            

Total Appropriations and Expenses 240,000$                 281,797$      18,118$        

Total Available 66,666.99$              48,549.16$   

**RFS 2023-03 for $258,197 is for actual construction of the well. Costs increased between adoption of the budget and 
letting of the RFS with Montgomery and Associates. Watermaster will share the $258,197 well construction expenses with 
MCWD & MPWMD - agreement in process. Capital Fund Assessments will be levied on Watermaster Standard Producers 
once the WM/MCWD/MPWMD cost share agreement is finalized.

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
 Budget vs. Actual Monitoring and Management - Capital Fund

 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2023)
Balance through July 31, 2023

* RFS 2022-05 for $23,600 covers design and planning for the new well and is funded by the 2022 $66,667 carryover amount

9



 

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster VI.C
Replenishment Fund 9/6/23

Water Year 2023 (October 1 - September 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2023) Page 1
Balance through July 31, 2023

Replenishment Fund 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Assessment Water Year WY 05/06 WY 06/07 WY 07/08 WY 08/09 WY 09/10 WY 10/11 WY 11/12 WY 12/13 WY 13/14 WY 14/15 WY 15/16
Unit Cost: a $1,132 / $283 $1,132 / $283 $2,485 / 621.25 $3,040 / $760 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,702/$675.50 $2,702/$675.50 $2,702/$675.50

b -$                         1,641,004$          4,226,710$          (2,871,690)$        (2,839,939)$        (3,822,219)$        (6,060,164)$        (8,735,671)$        (6,173,771)$        (3,102,221)$        (676,704)$           
Cal-Am Water Production (AF) c 3,710.00             4,059.90             3,862.90             2,966.02             3,713.52             3,416.04             3,070.90             3,076.61             3,232.10             2,764.73            1,879.21             

Cal-Am Water NSY Over-Production (AF) d 1,862.69             2,266.32             2,092.16             1,241.27             1,479.47             1,146.71             820.48                856.42                1,032.77             782.17                            - 

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield Considering 
Alternative Producers e  $          2,106,652  $         2,565,471  $          5,199,014  $         3,773,464  $         4,112,933  $         3,187,854  $         2,280,943  $         2,380,842  $         2,790,539  $         2,113,414  $                      -   

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment f -$                          $              20,235  $                 8,511  $                        -  $                        -  $                        -  $            154,963  $            181,057  $            281,012  $            312,103  $                      -   
Total California American g  $          2,106,652  $         2,585,706  $          5,207,525  $         3,773,464  $         4,112,933  $         3,187,854  $         2,435,907  $         2,561,899  $         3,071,550  $         2,425,516 

CAW Credit Against Assessment h (465,648)$            (12,305,924)$       (3,741,714)$        (5,095,213)$        (5,425,799)$        (5,111,413)$        

CAW Unpaid Balance i 1,641,004$         4,226,710$         (2,871,690)          (2,839,939)$        (3,822,219)$        (6,060,164)$        (8,735,671)$        (6,173,771)$        (3,102,221)$        (676,704)$          (676,704)$           

City of Seaside Balance Forward j -$                         243,294$             426,165$             1,024,272$          1,619,973$          891,509$             (110,014)$           (773,813)$           (1,575,876)$        (2,889,325)$        (3,346,548)$        

City of Seaside Municipal Production (AF) k 332.00                287.70                294.20                293.44                282.87                240.68                233.72                257.73                223.64                185.01               195.16                

City of Seaside NSY Over-Production (AF) l 194.07                153.78                161.99                153.06                113.21                50.84                  58.82                  85.17                  52.71                  25.77 37.87
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield Considering 
Alternative Producers m  $             219,689  $            174,082  $             402,540  $            465,300  $            314,721  $            141,335  $            163,509  $            236,782  $            142,410  $              69,630  $            102,330 

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment n  $               12,622  $                     85  $                 4,225  $              16,522  $              20,690  $                      -    $                1,689  $              27,007  $                3,222  $                     38  $              11,959 

Total Municipal o  $             232,310  $            174,167  $             406,764  $            481,823  $            335,412  $            141,335  $            165,198  $            263,788  $            145,631  $              69,667  $            114,290 

City of Seaside - Golf Courses (APA - 540 AFY)
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - Alternative 
Producer p -$                     -$                    131,705$             69,701$               -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment q -$                     -$                    32,926$               17,427$               -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Golf Courses r -$                     -$                    164,631$             87,128$               -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total City of Seaside* s  $             232,310  $            174,167  $             571,395  $            568,951  $            335,412  $            141,335  $            165,198  $            263,788  $            145,631  $              69,667  $            114,290 
City of Seaside Late Payment 5% t  $               10,984  $                8,704  $               26,712  $              26,750  $              15,737 

In-lieu Credit Against Assessment u (1,079,613)$        (1,142,858)$        (828,996)$           (1,065,852)$        (1,459,080)$        (526,890)$           (162)$                  

City of Seaside Unpaid Balance v 243,294$            426,165$            1,024,272$         1,619,973$         891,509$            (110,014)$           (773,813)$           (1,575,876)$        (2,889,325)$        (3,346,548)$       (3,232,420)$        

Mission Memorial Park

Mission Memorial Park Production (AF) w 20.80                  26.40                  12.80                  22.40                  27.00                  24.95                  24.89                  17.97                 13.67                  

Mission Memorial Park NSY Over-Production (AF) x -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                      
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - Alternative 
Producer y -$                     -$                    -$                     -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment z -$                     -$                    -$                     -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Mission Memorial Park aa -$                     -$                    -$                     -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Replenishment Fund Balance bb 1,884,298$          4,652,874$          (1,847,417)$         (1,219,966)$        (2,930,710)$        (6,170,178)$        (9,509,483)$        (7,749,648)$        (5,991,546)$        (4,023,252)$        (3,909,125)$        

Replenishment Fund Balance Forward cc  $                      -   1,884,298$          4,652,874$          (1,847,417)$        (1,219,966)$        (2,930,710)$        (6,170,178)$        (9,509,483)$        (7,749,648)$        (5,991,546)$        (4,023,252)$        
Total Replenishment Assessments dd  $          2,349,946  $         2,768,576  $          5,805,632  $         4,369,165  $         4,464,082  $         3,329,189  $         2,601,104  $         2,825,688  $         3,217,182  $         2,495,183  $            114,290 
Total Paid and/or Credited ee  $           (465,648)  $                      -    $      (12,305,924)  $        (3,741,714)  $        (6,174,826)  $        (6,568,657)  $        (5,940,409)  $        (1,065,852)  $        (1,459,080)  $          (526,890)  $                  (162)
Grand Total Fund Balance ff 1,884,298$          4,652,874$          (1,847,417)$         (1,219,966)$        (2,930,710)$        (6,170,178)$        (9,509,483)$        (7,749,648)$        (5,991,546)$        (4,023,252)$        (3,909,125)$        

  2015 = 195.0 AF golf course in-lieu
  2016 = 00.06 AF golf course in-lieu
  2017 = 00.00 AF golf course in-lieu

Cal-Am Water Balance Forward

* 2010 = 319.55 AF golf course in-lieu replenishment and 68.8 AF 4-party agmt in-lieu replenishment
  2011 = 411.1 AF golf course in-lieu replenishment
  2012 = 298.2 AF golf course in-lieu replenishment
  2013 = 383.4 AF golf course in-lieu replenishment
  2014 = 552.4 AF golf course in-lieu capped at 540 AF

10



 

VI.C
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 9/6/23

Replenishment Fund Page 2
Water Year 2023 (October 1 - September 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2023)

Balance through July 31, 2023

Replenishment Fund 2017 2018 2019 2020 WY 2021 WY 2022
Totals WY 2006 
Through 2022

 Budget            
WY 2023

Projected Totals 
Through WY 

2023
Assessment Water Year WY 16/17 WY 17/18 WY 18/19 WY 19/20 WY 20/21 WY 21/22 WY 22/23
Unit Cost: a $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,947 / $737 $3,260/ $815 $3,461/ $865

b (676,704)$            (491,747)$           (48,797,949)$       (47,979,852)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      
Cal-Am Water Production (AF) c 2,029.51             2,229.45             2,120.22             2,245.88             1,664.04             1,648.71                         47,689.74 
Cal-Am Water NSY Over-Production (AF) d 64.40                  374.65                284.85                334.21                                     -                       -              14,638.57 

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield Considering 
Alternative Producers e  $             184,957  $         1,075,995  $             818,097  $            959,859  $                  -  -$                    33,550,034$        100,000$             33,650,034$        

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment f  $            164,872  $                  -  -$                     $         1,122,753 20,000$               1,142,753$          
Total California American g  $             184,957  $         1,075,995  $             818,097  $         1,124,731  $                        - -$                         $       34,672,786 120,000$              $       34,792,786 

CAW Credit Against Assessment h (49,382,196)$       $                  -   $                  -   $                  -  -$                     $      (81,527,907) -$                    (81,527,907)$      

CAW Unpaid Balance i (491,747)$           (48,797,949)$      (47,979,852)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,735,121)$      (46,735,121)$      

City of Seaside Balance Forward (120.28 AF) j (3,232,420)$         (3,142,500)$        (3,022,249)$         (2,919,806)$        (2,802,831)$        (2,708,829)$        (2,661,184)$        
City of Seaside Municipal Production (AF) k 188.31                184.63                178.40                181.65                174.69 155.12               3,888.95 
City of Seaside NSY Over-Production (AF) l 30.47                  32.46                  27.82                  32.06                  25.52                  11.69               1,247.31 

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield Considering 
Alternative Producers m  $               87,512  $              93,225  $               79,893  $              92,089  $              75,197  $              38,116 2,898,358$           $            100,000 2,998,358$          

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment n  $                 2,409  $              27,026  $               22,550  $              24,886  $              18,806  $                9,529  $            203,263  $              10,000 213,263$             
Total Municipal o  $               89,920  $            120,251  $             102,443  $            116,975  $              94,002  $              47,645  $         3,101,621  $            110,000  $         3,211,621 

City of Seaside - Golf Courses (APA - 540 AFY)
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - Alternative 
Producer p -$                     -$                    $                  -  $                    -  $                  -  $                  -   $            201,406  $            201,406 

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment q -$                     -$                    $                  -  $                    -  $                  -  $                  -   $              50,353 50,353$               
Total Golf Courses r -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                     $            251,759 251,759$             

Total City of Seaside* s  $               89,920  $            120,251  $             102,443  $            116,975  $              94,002  $              47,645  $         3,353,380  $            110,000  $         3,463,380 
City of Seaside Late Payment 5% t  $              88,887  $              88,887 

In-lieu Credit Against Assessment u                        -                        -  $        (6,103,451)                        - (6,103,451)$        
City of Seaside Unpaid Balance v (3,142,500)$        (3,022,249)$        (2,919,806)$        (2,802,831)$        (2,708,829)$        (2,661,184)$        (2,661,184)$        (2,551,184)$        (2,551,184)$        

Mission Memorial Park (APA - 31 AFY)
Mission Memorial Park Production (AF) w 13.74                  14.43                  16.07                  20.00                  46.77 33.95 335.84
Mission Memorial Park NSY Over-Production (AF) x -                      -                                          -                       -  15.77                  2.95                    18.72

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - Alternative 
Producer y -$                     -$                    -$                     $                  -  46,488$               9,608$                  $              56,096 56,096$               

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment z -$                     -$                    -$                     $                  -  11,626$               2,402$                  $              14,028 14,028$               
Board Approved (5/4/22) Credit Against Assessment (33,114)                                      -  $             (33,114) (33,114)$             
$8,500 Applied to Admin Fund to cover expenses (8,500)                 
Mission Memorial Park Unpaid Balance aa -$                     -$                     -$                     $                     -   -$                     $                      -    $                      -   -$                    
Total o  $                      -    $                      -    $                      -    $                      -   16,500$              12,010$               $              28,510  $                     -   28,510$               

Total Replenishment Fund Balance bb (3,634,247)$         (51,820,198)$      (50,899,658)$       (49,657,952)$      (49,563,950)$      (49,516,305)$      (49,487,795)$      (49,286,305)$      (49,286,305)$      

Replenishment Fund Balance Forward cc (3,909,125)$         (3,634,247)$        (51,820,198)$       (50,899,658)$      (49,657,952)$      (49,563,950)$      (49,516,305)$      
Total Replenishment Assessments dd  $             274,877  $         1,196,246  $             920,540  $         1,241,706  $            110,502  $              59,655  $       38,143,563  $            230,000 38,373,563$        
Total Paid and/or Credited ee  $      (49,382,196)  $             (16,500)  $             (12,010)  $      (87,659,868) (87,659,868)$      
Grand Total Fund Balance ff (3,634,247)$         (51,820,198)$      (50,899,658)$       (49,657,952)$      (49,563,950)$      (49,516,305)$       $      (49,516,305) (49,286,305)$      (49,286,305)$      

Cal-Am Water Balance Forward

11



12



 

Page 1  

ITEM V.D 
9/6/23 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
 
TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Robert S. Jaques, Technical Program Manager   
DATE: September 6, 2023 
SUBJECT: Summary of Flow Direction Flow Velocity Analyses 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
RECOMMENDATION:  Perform no further work on Flow Direction/Flow Velocity Analyses at 
this time. 
 
BACKGROUND: During 2022 the TAC and Board received presentations on the work done by Montgomery 
& Associates to analyze the direction and velocity that seawater intrusion, if it were to occur, would move 
within the Seaside Basin.  Both the TAC and Board felt it would be worthwhile to perform further analysis of 
this topic, using a different set of assumptions than were used in the earlier work. 
 
At the March 8, 2023 TAC meeting a proposal from Montgomery & Associates to perform additional 
analyses was discussed.  Mr. Benito, who had prepared the proposal, raised several issues for the TAC 
to consider before deciding whether to recommend to the Board that additional analyses be performed.  
The proposal was for over $43,000, which is well above the $30,000 amount that was budgeted for 
this work in 2023. 
 
DISCUSSION: At the March 8 TAC meeting Mr. Benito pointed out that the maximum rate of inland 
movement of seawater intrusion will be in the Paso Robles aquifer. He said it was unlikely that further 
modeling would show appreciably more rapid movement, unless more severe drought assumptions 
were used.  Using alternate assumptions including lower ASR injection rates and demand figures from 
the Cal-Am Urban Water Management Plan will show greater inland travel than the previously 
analyzed scenario because overall there will be greater pumping and less water being injected into the 
basin.  However, this may not represent the most conservative set of assumptions with regard to 
uncertainty in future climate.   
Mr. Gaglioti recommended preparing a simplified version of the 2022 Technical Memorandum that 
reflects this additional information.  The simplified version is attached. 
 
The 2022 analysis developed an order-of-magnitude estimate of the potential rate of inland travel of 
seawater intrusion under conservative assumptions.  That analysis found that once seawater reaches 
the shoreline it could intrude towards the closest inland Cal-Am production wells within 
approximately a decade.  A substantially different conclusion is unlikely to come from changing the 
future demand and ASR injection assumptions.  The reason for this is that the 250 ft/day intrusion rate 
value from the 2022 analysis already reflects: 
• A simulated period of extended drought conditions 
• Little to no ASR recharge 
• Very little recharge from rainfall 
• And before: 

o The Seaside golf courses begin using recycled water 
o The PWM Project is expanded, and  
o Cal-Am’s 700 AFY overpumping repayment program comes online.    

 

13



 

Page 2  

Modeling scenarios should provide information that will be helpful in making basin management 
decisions. I reported to the TAC that it was my belief that the value of performing the work described 
in Mr. Benito’s Proposal did not justify the cost of performing that work. It was therefore my 
recommendation that at this time no further work be performed on Flow Direction/Flow Velocity 
Analyses.  Following discussion, the TAC unanimously passed a motion to make this recommendation 
to the Board. 
 
If there is a desire to evaluate the impacts of a more severe or drier climate scenario, it would first be 
necessary to develop such a scenario.  How that would be done, and how accurate it would be, would 
be problematic, unless there were already widely-accepted already-developed scenarios that could be 
drawn upon. 
  
ATTACHMENT:  Summary of Flow Direction/Flow Velocity Analysis 

14



 

Page 3  

 
SUMMARY OF FLOW DIRECTION/FLOW VELOCITY ANALYSES 

 
Prepared by Robert Jaques, P.E., Technical Program Manager, Seaside Basin Watermaster 

March 17, 2023 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Groundwater modeling of the Seaside Basin performed in early 2022 was done to estimate the 
direction, velocity of movement, and potential inland distances of movement of seawater intrusion, if 
it were to occur along the coastline of Monterey Bay. 
 
The analysis was based on the assumption that in 2024 several water supply/water replenishment 
projects would come on-line.  These included the Pure Water Monterey Expansion Project, Cal Am’s 
over-pumping replenishment payback program, and the use of recycled water to irrigate the Seaside 
Golf Courses.   
 
A “worst case” scenario was evaluated to see what would occur if the 2024 water 
supply/replenishment projects were delayed or not implemented, and existing groundwater conditions 
otherwise stayed the same.  In this worst-case scenario seawater would move inland from the coast at a 
rate of about 250 feet per year, and could reach major production wells in about a decade. 
 
The analysis used a cyclical repetition of historical hydrology to simulate future rainfall patterns.  It 
did not assess the impacts that would result if future years have longer and more frequent drier weather 
and drought periods.  An analysis of recent hydrologic data indicates that this is beginning to occur.  If 
this trend continues, the inland rate of movement of seawater intrusion would increase. 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

In February 2022 Montgomery & Associates performed groundwater modeling to estimate the 
velocities, time scales, and travel distances that seawater intrusion, if it were to occur, would move 
inland from locations along the coastline in the Northern Coastal Subarea of the Seaside Basin. The 
analysis considered both current conditions and projected potential future conditions. A Technical 
Memorandum dated February 25, 2022 was prepared providing a detailed discussion of the analysis.  
This Summary provides a condensed version of that Technical Memorandum as well as information 
provided to the Watermaster’s Board at its September 7 and October 5, 2022 meetings. 
 
In the Seaside Basin aquifers, the distance offshore of the interface between fresh groundwater and 
seawater (the seawater intrusion front) is currently unknown.  However, this analysis can provide a 
range of potential seawater intrusion travel rates from the coastline under different potential Basin 
conditions, and as such can provide insights into the time scales and distances at which further inland 
intrusion could occur, if early signs of seawater intrusion were to be detected in coastal monitoring 
wells. 

 
 
 

15



 

Page 4  

ANALYSIS 
 
Scenarios 
A “Baseline Scenario” was analyzed to evaluate the movement of seawater assuming the operation 
only of currently planned projects with no additional replenishment water added to the Basin. For 
Water Years (WY) 2018 through WY2021 the analysis was based on actual measured pumping, 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) and Pure Water Monterey (PWM) injection, and hydrology 
(rainfall).  For WY 2022 through WY 2050 it was based on projected future pumping, currently 
planned projects, and a repeat of the historical hydrology from the period between WY 1988 and WY 
2016.  The analysis also took into account projected sea level rise. 
 
The Baseline Scenario was based on the following assumptions: 

• Water supply and demand forecasts in MPWMD’s September 2019 “Supply and Demand for 
Water on the Monterey Peninsula”  

 

• Cal-Am's 25 year 700 AFY plan to replenish the Basin for its historical overpumping begins in 
WY 2024 

 

• The Pure Water Monterey (PWM) Expansion project begins operation in WY 2024 
 

• The City of Seaside’s replacement of groundwater with recycled water for golf course irrigation 
begins in WY 2024 

 

• The construction of the Security National Guaranty and Campus Town developments in the City of 
Seaside occur as currently planned 

 

• No proposed Groundwater Sustainability Plan projects are implemented in the neighboring 
subbasins 

 
Groundwater Levels at Coastal Monitoring Wells 
Six monitoring wells have been used for establishing protective elevations against seawater intrusion 
in the Basin. The protective elevation monitoring wells are shown in Figure 1. There are two wells 
(Shallow and Deep) at both PCA-West and MSC.  Annually averaged groundwater elevations in these 
protective elevation wells under the Baseline Scenario are shown in Figure 2, which clearly shows the 
beneficial impact of these water supply/replenishment projects. 
 
At all of the protective elevation monitoring wells except for CDM MW-4, groundwater levels rise 
steadily starting in WY 2024 (when the PWM Expansion, Cal-AM replenishment repayment, and 
Seaside Golf Course recycled water projects are assumed to begin) through WY 2033. After WY 2033 
groundwater levels begin to either level off or drop to varying degrees in response to wetter and drier 
periods in the hydrologic cycle.  CDM MW-4 is located in the Southern Coastal Subbasin, which is 
geologically separated from the Northern Coastal Subbasin where the other five protective elevation 
wells are located.  For this reason, it is not affected by these projects. 
 
Groundwater levels drop markedly in the last several years of the modeling period (WY 2046 through 
WY2050) due to the impacts of a simulated multi-year drought during which both ASR and PWM 
injection are greatly reduced and Cal-Am begins recovering banked ASR water credits to meet their 
system demands. The last 2 years of this period also coincides with the assumed end of Cal-Am’s 
replenishment repayment period, after which Cal-Am can return to pumping their full native 
groundwater rights.  

16



 

Page 5  

Figure 1.  Locations of Protective Elevation Wells

PROTECTIVE 
ELEVATION 

WELLS 

CDM MW-4 

17



 

 Page 6 

Figure 2.  Groundwater Elevations in the Protective Elevation Wells

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

2024
2025

2026
2027

2028
2029

2030
2031

2032
2033

2034
2035

2036
2037

2038
2039

2040
2041

2042
2043

2044
2045

2046
2047

2048
2049

2050

Av
er

ge
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 E

le
va

tio
n 

(fe
et

 A
bo

ve
 M

ea
n 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l)

Water Year
MSC_Shallow CDM MW-4 PCA-W_Deep PCA-W_Shallow Sentinel3 MSC_Deep

Cal-Am replenishment, Pure Water Monterey Expansion, 
and Seaside Golf Course Recycled Water Projects Begin 

18



 

 Page 7 

Figure 2 makes it clear that groundwater levels at the protective elevation wells will rise when 
the new water supply/replenishment projects begin operation, but that those groundwater levels 
will fall once the drought period returns, and in particular once Cal Am can resume its normal 
pumping level that is allowed by the Adjudication Decision (assumed to occur in 2049). 
 
Depending on groundwater levels in the Basin along the coast, groundwater in the aquifer may 
flow inland from the Bay or may flow offshore toward the Bay. 
 
Change in Flows Between the Basin and Monterey Bay  
Figure 3 shows the estimated annual flows of groundwater to and from the Seaside Basin and 
Monterey Bay.   Positive values are flows from the Bay into the Basin. Negative values are flows 
from the Basin into the Bay.  
 
Prior to the projected start-up of the three water supply/replenishment projects in WY 2024, in 
the Northern Coastal Subarea there is a net inflow of water from the Bay. This may or may not 
be seawater intrusion, because there may be freshwater stored offshore in the aquifer.  However, 
this represents a condition that would increase the potential for seawater intrusion. In WY 2024, 
when the three water supply/replenishment projects begin, groundwater levels begin to rise and 
flows change direction and become outflows of groundwater from the Basin into the Bay. The 
net outflow reaches a peak in WY 2033 following a series of above normal and extremely wet 
years.  Thereafter, the flow to the Bay begins to decrease due to a multi-year drought in the 
hydrologic cycle.  
 
As expected, due to the geologic separation of the Northern and Southern Coastal Subareas, 
Figure 3 shows that groundwater levels in the Southern Coastal Subarea are unaffected by the 
water supply/replenishment projects in the Northern Coastal Subarea. Water levels in the only 
protective elevation well in the Southern Coastal Subarea (CDM MW-4) are already at or above 
the protective elevation. 
 
Methodology and Porosity 
The movement of groundwater is very sensitive to the porosity (the openness or tightness) of the 
aquifer through which the groundwater is flowing. Because the porosity of the aquifer was not a 
calibrated parameter in the groundwater Model, a reasonable range of aquifer porosities was used 
to develop upper and lower estimates of seawater intrusion travel times from the coastline to 
varying distances inland. A porosity of 8% was used to represent the higher range of potential 
travel velocities, and a porosity of 16% was used to represent a lower range of potential 
velocities.  
 
The methodology used for this analysis is referred to as “particle tracking.”  Particles were 
simulated as being released into the groundwater every 500 feet along the entire length of the 
coastline of the Seaside Basin.  The model tracked the individual flow paths of the particles 
throughout the 33-year period of the Baseline Scenario, ending in September 2050. 
  

19



 

 Page 8 

Figure 3.  Flows Between the Seaside Basin and Monterey Bay 

-1,600

-1,400

-1,200

-1,000

-800

-600

-400

-200

0

200

400

600

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
2046
2047
2048
2049
2050

Ac
re

-F
ee

t p
er

 Y
ea

r

Water Year

Northern Coastal Subarea

Southern Coastal Subarea

Outflow 
to the 

Bay

Inflow 
from the 

Bay

20



 

 Page 9 

1 

2 

4 

5 

3 

Particle tracking is not a substitute for full seawater intrusion modeling, which is a more complex 
methodology.  However, it presents a range of potential groundwater travel rates under different 
Basin conditions, and thereby provides insight into the time scales and distances at which inland 
intrusion could occur.  
 
Results of the Analysis 
A zoomed-in view of the area of fastest inland movement of seawater intrusion (the Lower Paso 
Robles aquifer) is shown on the inset map on the left side of Figure 4. The graph on the right side 
of the figure shows the average annual inland velocity (in feet per year) where the fastest inland 
movement of water from Monterey Bay was found to occur.   
 
The numbered bullet points on the map and the graph in Figure 4 represent time periods under 
different operational and hydrologic conditions in the Basin as follows: 

 
This first period represents the Basin under current operations before the water 
supply/replenishment projects begin in WY 2024 and is reflective of multi-year drought 

conditions preceding that date.  Inland groundwater levels are at their lowest, creating conditions 
of maximum seawater intrusion potential and the highest inland flow velocity (as high as 250 
feet inland per year). On the inset map this period is shown as the red color-coded portion of the 
particle paths. 
 

This is the period when the water supply/replenishment projects come online in WY 2024 
and after the multi-year drought period ends. Groundwater is still moving inland from the 

coast, but at increasingly slower velocities as groundwater levels in the Basin rise. This is shown 
as the orange and yellow segments on the particle path map. 

 
This period represents a transition period when flows reverse from inflow from the Bay to 
outflow toward the Bay. Groundwater levels are at their highest as a result of five back-

to-back extremely wet and above-normal wet years. 
  

This period represents conditions when flows are still toward the Bay, but the velocity of 
flow begins to decrease after a series of dry and critically dry years. 

 
This final period represents the effects of a new multi-year drought. Groundwater begins 
to move inland from the Bay, though at a much slower rate than during the earlier inland 

flow period, ending at rate of 50 feet of inland travel per year in WY 2050. 
 
 
Potential Inland Travel Times of Seawater Interface Along a Preferential Flow Path 
The seawater-to-freshwater interface of seawater intrusion occurs not as a uniform front moving 
inland across the entire coastline at one rate, but as a diffused transition zone between freshwater 
and full-strength seawater.  This seawater interface transition zone can be characterized by the 
distance between the leading edge of this zone (where the salinity level is much lower than full 
strength seawater, but above the native groundwater salinity) and a midpoint between the leading  

21



 

 Page 10 

 
Figure 4.  Area of Fastest Inland Movement of Seawater Intrusion (the Lower Paso Robles aquifer) 

 
 

 

-300 

-250 

-200 

-150 

-100 

-50 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

2018 

2020 

2022 

2024 

2026 

2028 

2030 

2032 

2034 

2036 

2038 

2040 

2042 

2044 

2046 

2048 

2050 

Gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 F
lo

w
 V

el
oc

ity
 (f

ee
t p

er
 y

ea
r)

 

Water Year 

 Lower Paso Robles - Max Inland Velocity 

Groundwater 
Moving 

Inland from 
the Bay 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Groundwater 
Moving 

Offshore to 
the Bay 

 

Cal-Am 
replenishment, Pure 

Water Monterey 
Expansion, and 

Seaside Golf Course 
Recycled Water 
Projects Begin 

3 

4 

5 

2 

1 

22



 

 Page 12 

edge and full-strength seawater. The midpoint would have a very high salinity concentration 
much greater than that desired for the Basin. A transition zone width of 2,000 feet was assumed 
in this analysis.  seawater. The midpoint would have a very high salinity concentration much 
greater than that desired for the Basin. The analysis found that the pathways with the greatest 
inland flow velocities from the Bay were in the Lower Paso Robles aquifer. 
 
A “worst case” scenario was evaluated to see what would occur if the 2024 water 
supply/replenishment projects were delayed or not implemented, and existing groundwater 
conditions otherwise stayed the same.  In this scenario, and with an assumed porosity of 8%, the 
seawater interface would move inland from the coast at a rate of 250 feet per year. The travel 
velocity will accelerate closer to an active production well because of the cone of depression that 
forms around a pumping well. Figure 5 shows a graph of distance traveled inland from the 
coastline versus travel time under this worst-case scenario. The names of several production and 
monitoring wells in the area are shown, placed vertically at their respective distances inland from 
the coastline. In this scenario it could take as little as four years between when the leading edge 
of seawater interface is detected at a coastal monitoring well (such as PCA-W) and when the 
leading edge would reach some of the small production wells located near to the coast. It could 
take on the order of eleven years for the leading edge to reach a large production well further 
inland, such as Cal Am’s Playa 3 well which is located 2,800 feet from the coastline.  
 
Because a number of assumptions had to be made to perform this analysis, these estimates of the 
rate of inland movement of seawater should be taken only as order-of-magnitude values to 
provide a sense of the possible scale of travel times and distances. No data is currently available 
on the offshore location of the freshwater-seawater interface, nor of the width of the transition 
zone. Similarly, there is limited data available to estimate the aquifer porosities. Recently 
obtained data from a tracer study performed for PWM indicates that porosity in that part of the 
Basin may be as low as 5%.  This would result in a much higher groundwater movement velocity 
than the 8% value that was assumed for this analysis. Thus, while the assumed 8% porosity value 
was considered representative of an aquifer with fast groundwater movement velocities, it may 
not necessarily represent the fastest travel rates that could occur.  
 
 Climate Change 
As discussed above, significant future changes in climate can have a significant impact on the 
movement of groundwater within the Basin.  The graphs in Figure 6 depict the differences in 
hydrologic conditions between the past 100 years and the past 50 years, based on a statistical 
analysis of data from the Carmel River Basin.  In the 100-year graph, there were periods of 
normal rainfall 25% of the time, and less than normal periods occurred only 37% of the time.  In 
comparison, during the last 50 years there were periods of normal rainfall only 16% of the time, 
increased further to 48% of the time. The data indicates a clear trend toward having a higher 
percentage of dry and critically dry years. 
 
Figure 7 shows that in the most recent 35-year period, normal rainfall occurred 17% of the time, 
while less than normal periods increased to 44% of the time.  
 
 
 

23



 

 Page 13 

 
 
 
  
 
 

Figure 5. Potential Maximum Inland Travel Times and Distances  
in the  

Lower Paso Robles Aquifer  

 
    
 

SNG Calabrese/Cypress 

PCA - W 

PCA - E 

Target DBO 

Playa 3 

Seaside GC Coe 

Luxton 

Luzern 

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

3,000 

3,500 

4,000 

4,500 

5,000 

5,500 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 

Di
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 s
ho

re
lin

e 
(fe

et
) 

Travel Time from Coastline (years) 

Potential Fast Path Travel Times & Distances 
Assumed Interface Transition Zone Width = 2000 ft 

SW
I M

idp
oin

t 

SW
I L

ea
din

g E
dg

e 

24



 

 Page 14 

Figure 6.  Climate Change During the Past 100 Years and the Past 50 Years 
 
 

  

25



 

 Page 15 

Figure 7.  Climate Change During the Last 35 Years 
 

 
 

11% 

9% 

14% 

17% 

11% 

23% 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

Extremely 
Wet 

Wet Above 
Normal 

Normal Below 
Normal 

Dry Critically 
Dry 

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y 

Carmel River Water Year Type 

WY 1987 to WY 2021 

14% 

26



 

 Page 16 

 
PRINCIPAL CONCLUSIONS 

 
1. The most significant inland flow of seawater intrusion (in terms of both rates and distance) occurs in 

the Lower Paso Robles aquifer in the Northern Coastal Subarea. The fastest travel times are 
concentrated in line with the main pumping depression where production wells are screened in the 
Lower Paso Robles.  This is consistent with data used in calibrating the groundwater model.  These 
velocities decrease as groundwater levels rise, and can reverse to an offshore flow direction if 
groundwater levels become high enough. 
 

2. Maximum inland flow velocities of up to 250 feet per year can occur under current and near-term Basin 
conditions before the water supply/replenishment projects are implemented.  If those projects do not 
become operational, once seawater reaches the shoreline it could reach the closest inland Cal-Am 
production wells in about a decade.  

 
3. The inland velocities and travel distances are sensitive to changes in hydrologic conditions.   Periods of 

prolonged drought will increase inland travel rates and increase the seawater intrusion risk. The 
repetitive hydrologic cycle used in the Baseline Scenario represents only one possible future hydrology 
scenario. Using a future hydrologic cycle with longer and/or more frequent periods of below average 
rainfall would show a higher rate of inland movement of seawater intrusion.  

 
4. The lower ASR injection rates used in the alternate scenario analyzed in the August 5, 2022 

Montgomery & Associates Technical Memorandum titled “Hybrid Water Budget Analyses of Basin 
Replenishment Options & Alternate Assumptions” were based on the assumption that the ASR injection 
rates in the 2019 MPWMD forecast were somewhat too high.  They but were not based on using a more 
severe or drier future climate scenario. Therefore, using those lower ASR injection rates may not 
represent the most conservative set of assumptions with regard to uncertainty in future climate. 

  
5. Given the unknowns about future hydrologic conditions, it is unlikely that anything that would be 

helpful in making Basin management decisions would be learned from performing further flow 
direction/flow velocity analyses using the supply and demand quantities in the Cal Am UWMP.  The 
reason for this it that the intrusion rate of 250 feet-per-day already takes into account a simulated period 
of extended drought conditions with little to no ASR recharge and very reduced recharge from rainfall, 
and before any of the water supply/replenishment projects come online.  These have a greater impact on 
seawater intrusion than do supply and demand quantities. 

 
6. If there is a desire to evaluate the impacts of a more severe or drier climate scenario, it would first be 

necessary to develop such a scenario.  How that would be done, and how accurate it would be, would 
be problematic. 

 
 

 
 

27



28



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER  ITEM VII.A. 
9/6/23 

 
TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Robert S. Jaques, Technical Program Manager   
DATE: September 6, 2023 
SUBJECT: Consider Approving Supplemental Cost-Sharing Agreement for Monitoring Well FO-9 
Shallow Replacement Well Installation 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the attached Supplemental Cost Sharing Agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: As discussed in the 2021 and 2022 Watermaster Annual Reports, monitoring well FO-9 
Shallow developed a leak in its casing and had to be destroyed to prevent cross-aquifer contamination.  
Capital Projects were included in the 2022 and 2023 Monitoring & Management Program (M&MP) Capital 
Budgets to design and install a replacement well.  Data that will be obtained from the replacement well will 
be useful to MPWMD and MCWD as well as the Watermaster.  Efforts in late 2022 and into early 2023 led 
to the development of a three-party cost-sharing agreement between these entities for the costs to install the 
replacement well. 
 
At its February 14, 2023 meeting the Watermaster Board approved the attached Memorandum of 
Agreement for the Watermaster, MPWMD, and MCWD to share in the costs of that work.   The Agreement 
was approved by the MPWMD on May 3, 2023.   
 
DISCUSSION: MCWD said it was willing to approve the Agreement if it was provided assurances by the 
Watermaster that MCWD would be provided monitoring data obtained from the well by the Watermaster, 
and that MCWD would be able to access the well to obtain its own water quality and water level data, if it 
so desired.  To provide those assurances, I prepared the attached Supplemental Memorandum of Agreement 
between the Watermaster and MCWD.  MCWD approved both the Memorandum of Agreement and the 
Supplemental Memorandum of Agreement on July 20, 2023.   
 
At its meeting of August 21, 2023 this topic was presented to and discussed by the Budget & Finance 
Committee.  The Committee approved the Supplemental Memorandum of Agreement and forwarded it to 
the Board for approval. 
 
Approval of the Supplemental Memorandum of Agreement will complete the process of entering into the 
three-party cost-sharing agreement which will significantly reduce the Watermaster’s costs to have the 
replacement well installed.  The Watermaster will not incur any costs as a result of approving this 
supplemental agreement, since the Watermaster already publicizes the monitoring data from this well, and 
any monitoring work performed by MCWD would be at MCWD’s expense. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
A Capital Fund Assessment of $119,763.73 is proposed (42.5% of the $281,797 cost of the well per the Cost 
Share Agreement). This assessment applies to 2023 as the well construction is anticipated to be completed by 
the end of this calendar year (the Watermaster fiscal year). Assessment was pending execution of the Cost 
Share Agreement, and will be levied on parties after well construction is completed. Payments from parties 
most likely will be due in early 2024. 
 

29



The assessments for the parties required to contribute to the Capital Fund are:  
California American Water 91.0%    $108,984.99  
City of Seaside 7.0%  8,383.46  
D.B.O. 0.9%  1,077.87 
Granite Rock 0.9% 1077.87 
Cypress Pacific 239.53   
 $119,763.73 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Memorandum of Agreement 
2. Supplemental Memorandum of Agreement 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 
    

44



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER  ITEM VII.B 
9/6/23 

 
TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Robert S. Jaques, Technical Program Manager   
DATE: September 6, 2023 
SUBJECT: Consider Approving Technical Advisory Committee Holding Meetings Via Zoom 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve having the Watermaster’s Technical Advisory Committee hold its 
meetings using Zoom while complying with Traditional Brown Act teleconference requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
At its March 1, 2023 meeting the Board considered a staff request to allow the Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) to hold its meetings using Zoom, even after the Governor’s proclaimed Covid-19 State 
of Emergency was no longer in effect.  Following discussion, the Board passed a motion that stated in part 
“…that advisory committees meet in person per the Decision mandate to adhere to the Brown Act, and 
encourage committees to use traditional Brown Act remote attendance noticing requirements so that they 
can achieve quorum…”. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
At the Watermaster TAC’s meeting of July 12, 2023 there was discussion to determine the preference of 
TAC members to be able to meet via Zoom rather than in-person, if the Board was willing to approve that.  
Each member said they would prefer to have the option to meet via Zoom, and only hold meetings in-
person if in-depth discussion of complex issues was going to be involved, or if there was some other reason 
to meet in-person.  With that input I said I would pursue this with the Board. 

I researched this to see if it would be permissible under the Brown Act requirements, and the various pieces 
of pertinent State legislation that have been enacted in the last several years, for the TAC to hold its 
meetings via Zoom.  Here is what I learned, taken verbatim from the website of one of several of the law 
firms that have posted similar information about this topic:  

Original Brown Act Teleconferencing Rules Remain Available 
Local agencies may always rely on the [Brown Act] teleconferencing rules that applied pre-COVID: 

1.  All votes must be by rollcall 
2. The meeting must be conducted so as to protect the rights of the public appearing before 

the body or wishing to comment 
3. All members of the public must be able to access the meeting and provide public comment 

4. Teleconference locations must be identified in the agenda 
5. Copies of the agenda must be posted at all teleconference locations and teleconference 

locations must be open to the public 
6. At least a quorum of the members of the legislative body who are participating remotely 

must do so from locations within the agency’s jurisdiction. 

45



A presentation was made to the Salinas Valley Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s Board of Directors on 
December 15, 2022 by Mr. Les Girard, County Counsel, about this topic.  Mr. Girard’s presentation stated 
in part “In September of 2022 the Governor signed int law AB 2449, which will become effective January 
1, 2023.  The Statute incorporates Traditional Teleconferencing under the Brown Act…”  As a result of 
that information, the SVBGSA’s Advisory Committee is now allowing members to participate in its 
meetings via Zoom. 

Mr. Girard’s presentation confirmed the website information regarding the ability to comply with the 
Brown Act post-pandemic by complying with the Traditional Brown Act Teleconferencing Rules. 

I polled each member of the TAC to determine whether or not they would be comfortable complying with 
the six Traditional Brown Act Teleconferencing Rules listed above, and each member said he/she would 
be comfortable doing that. 
 
Therefore, I am requesting the Board’s approval for the TAC to hold its meetings via Zoom as long as 
those meetings comply with the Traditional Brown Act Teleconferencing Rules. This will aid the TAC  in 
ensuring that a quorum of members participate, so that the TAC can conduct its meetings. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 
    

46



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER ITEM VIII.A.1  
        9/6/2023 

TO:   Watermaster Board of Directors    
FROM:  Laura Paxton, Administrative Officer (AO) 

DATE:  September 6, 2023  

SUBJECT:  Proposed Fiscal Year (Calendar Year) 2024 Annual Administrative Fund Budget  

RECOMMENDATION: The Watermaster Budget and Finance Committee at its August 21, 2023 
meeting recommended the board approve the 2024 Administrative Fund Budget. 

DISCUSSION: The court decision states that next fiscal year’s budgets must be approved by the 
Board of Directors no later than the end of October each year in order for tentative budgets to be 
circulated to each adjudication Party “no earlier than November 1 and no later than November 15” 
each fiscal year.  
 
The need for legal services in 2023 has been minimal with $40 spent to date. Joe Hughes, new legal 
counsel, contracted with Watermaster and began assisting the board in 2023. He is currently tasked 
with researching the Decision regarding aspects of Basin replenishment and it is anticipated this task 
will continue into 2024. Replenishment related services will be funded in 2024 by the estimated 
$20,000 remaining balance in the Replenishment Assessment Fund after 2023 expenditures. The 
2024 Legal line item for non-replenishment related legal services is proposed at $22,000.   
 
In anticipation of a potential cost increase to be considered under closed session today, it is proposed 
that the Administrative Officer line item be increased to $63,500, up from $60,000. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: An estimated $23,500 in unspent 2023 funds are expected to be carried over to 
2024. An Administrative Fund Assessment of $70,000 is proposed: $63,500(AO) + $25,000(Legal) 
+ $25,000(Reserve) = $113,500 - $20,000(RA Fund) - $23,500(Carryover) = $70,000 
 
The assessments for the parties required to contribute to the Administrative Fund are:  

California American Water 83.0%    $50,215  
City of Seaside 14.4%  8,712  
City of Sand City 2.6%  1,573   
 $70,000 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Proposed Administrative Fund Budget for FY (Calendar Year) 2024 

47



 

VIII.A.1
9/6/23

2023 
Adopted  
Budget 

2023 
Estimated 

Total 

2024 
Proposed 
Budget

Assessment Income

Reserve/Rollover* 39,500$       43,000$         23,500$        
Administrative Assessment 60,500         60,500           70,000          
Replenishment Related Legal Costs** 8,500             20,000          

Totals 100,000       112,000         113,500        

Expenditures
Contractual Services - Administrative 60,000         60,000           63,500          
Legal Services 12,000         3,500             22,000          
Public Awareness Committee 3,000           2,610             3,000            
Total Expenses 75,000         63,500           88,500          
Total Available 25,000         48,500           25,000          

Less Reserve 25,000         25,000           25,000          

Net Available -$                 23,500$         -$                  

** Replenishment related legal costs will be covered by funds transferred into the 
Administrative Fund from the Replenishment Assessment Fund

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
Administrative Fund Budget

Proposed Budget September 6, 2023
Administrative Year 2024

* Note: The reserve/rollover balance of $23,500 was determined upon completion by 
Watermaster staff of a detailed reconciliation from 2006 through July 2023 of the 
Administrative Fund financial records held at the Watermaster office.

48



ITEM VIII.A.2. 
SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER  9/6/2023 

 
TO:  Watermaster Board of Directors 

FROM:   Robert Jaques, Technical Program Manager 
DATE:  September 6, 2023 
SUBJECT:  Approve the FY 2024 Monitoring and Management Program (M&MP) and the FY 

2024 M&MP Operations and Capital Budgets 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
RECOMMENDATION: The Watermaster Budget and Finance Committee at its August 21, 2023 
meeting recommended the board approve the 2024 Monitoring and Management Program (M&MP) 
and the FY 2024 M&MP Operations and Capital Budgets.  

SUMMARY:   
Attached are the proposed FY 2024 M&MP and the proposed FY 2024 M&MP Operations and 
Capital Budgets for 2024 and 2025.  The Board has asked that two-year budgets be developed to 
alert the Board to potential changes in scope and/or cost in near future years.  Only the 2024 
budgets are before the B&F Committee for approval.  The 2025 budgets are for information only.  
 
The attached documents were approved by the TAC at its August 9, 2023 meeting, with the 
TAC’s recommendation that they be approved by the Board. The Watermaster Budget and 
Finance Committee at its August 21, 2023 meeting recommended they be approved by the board.  
 
The following are comments and/or principal revisions from the 2023 M&MP Budget: 
 
Technical Program Manager:  Although the Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the adjacent 
Monterey Subbasin has been completed and was submitted in early 2022 by the Salinas Valley 
Basin and the Marina Coast Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agencies, there will 
continue to be regular meetings of their GSP-related committees that I serve on representing the 
Watermaster.  Also, there will likely be further work related to obtaining replenishment water for 
the Basin.  Therefore, I anticipate that the 2024 workload will be similar to that of 2023, so the 
proposed line-item budget amount has been maintained at $75,000 in 2024. 
 
Tasks Involving MPWMD and Montgomery & Associates:  The scopes-of-work for both 
MPWMD and Montgomery & Associates are essentially unchanged from 2022.  However, both 
will have hourly-rate increases in 2024, so the costs of the Tasks in which they are involved 
reflect somewhat higher dollar amounts in 2024 compared to 2023.  
 
For several of the Tasks involving MPWMD (I.2.a.1, I.2.b.2, I.2.b.3) I have re-allocated certain 
of their costs to more closely match the Tasks to which they pertain.  This accounts for some of 
the changes in costs of these Tasks in 2024 compared to their costs in 2023. 
 
Task I.2.b.3 includes induction logging of the Sentinel Wells.  Access to Sentinel Well #4 may 
be reduced if the access road leading to it is removed and re-vegetated in conjunction with the 
demolition of the Ord Village Pump Station.  If that is the case, the induction logging vehicle 
will have to be located some distance away from this well, and the cable that connects the 
logging tool to the vehicle will have to be supported by a series of braces with pulleys on them.  

49



Mr. Feeney included a contingency amount of $5,000 in his cost estimate for this work in case 
this additional work is needed.  This, along with increases in the charges from the induction 
logging subcontractor, led to the increase in the cost of this Task. 
 
As a result of the changes described above, as indicated by the right-hand column titled 
“Comparative Costs from 2023 Budget” in Attachment 1, the proposed 2024 Budget is $31,149 
lower ($324,930 -$293,781) than the 2023 Budget. 
 
Following B&F Committee approval of the 2024 M&MP and the 2024 M&MP Budgets, they 
will be forwarded to the Board for approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
For the Monitoring & Maintenance – Operations Fund: 
An estimated $123,781 in unspent 2023 funds are expected to be carried over to 2024. An 
Operations Fund Assessment of $170,000 is proposed ($293,781 2024 Ops Budget - $123,781 
carryover =$170,000). 
 
The assessments for the parties required to contribute to the Operations Fund are:  

California American Water 91.0%    $154,700  
City of Seaside 7.0%  11,900  
D.B.O. 0.9%  1,530 
Granite Rock 0.9% 1,530 
Cypress Pacific 340   
 $170,000 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 2024 M&MP 
2. 2024 and 2025 M&MP Operations Budgets 
3. 2024 and 2025 M&MP Capital Budgets 
  

50



 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



 

MPWMD Private 
Consultants

Contractors

Technical Project Manager $0 $75,000 $0 $75,000 $75,000 

M.1.a Project Budget and Controls $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
M.1.b Assist with Board and TAC Agendas $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
M.1.c, 
M.1.d, & 
M.1.e

Preparation for and Attendance at Meetings 
and Peer Review of Documents and 
Reports(8)

$0 $19,530 $0 $19,530 $28,280 

M.1.f QA/QC $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

M.1.g SGMA Documentation Preparation $0 $2,540 $0 $2,540 $2,464 

I. 2. a. Database Management
I. 2. a. 1. Conduct Ongoing Data Entry/ Database 

Maintenance(15)
$19,100 $3,600 $0 $22,700 $32,238 

I. 2. a. 2. Verify Accuracy of Production Well Meters $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 2. b. Data Collection Program 
I. 2. b. 1. Site Representation and Selection(7) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 2. b. 2. Collect Water Levels(5)(6) $21,128 $0 $0 $21,128 $20,042 

I. 2. b. 3. Collect Water Quality Samples and Perform 
Sentinel Well Induction Logging(1)(5)

$20,694 $0 $17,752 $38,446 $28,210 

I. 2. b. 4. Update Program Schedule and Standard 
Operating Procedures.  

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 2. b. 5. Monitor Well Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
I. 2. b. 6. Reports $3,680 $0 $0 $3,680 $3,568 
I. 2. b. 7. CASGEM Data Submittal for 

Watermaster's Voluntary Wells
$4,200 $0 $0 $4,200 $5,352 

I. 3. a. Enhanced Seaside Basin Groundwater 
Model

I. 3. a. 1 Update the Existing Model(11) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 3. a. 2 Develop Protective Water Levels(12) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
I. 3. a. 3 Evaluate Replenishment Scenarios and 

Develop Answers to Basin Management 
Questions(10)

$0 $40,000 $0 $40,000 $60,000 

I. 3. b. Complete Preparation of Basin 
Management Action Plan

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 3. c. Refine and/or Update the Basin 
Management Action Plan(7)

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 3. d Evaluate Coastal Wells for Cross-Aquifer 
Contamination Potential

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 3. e Seaside Basin Geochemical Model(13) $0 $10,000 $0 $10,000 $10,000 

I. 4. a. Oversight of Seawater Intrusion Detection 
and Tracking(17)

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 4. b. Analyze and Map Water Quality from 
Coastal Monitoring Wells

I. 4. c. Annual Report- Seawater Intrusion 
Analysis(16)

$0 $28,020 $0 $28,020 $27,176 

I. 4. e. Refine and/or Update the Seawater 
Intrusion Response Plan(2) (9)

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 4. f. If Seawater Intrusion is Determined to be 
Occurring, Implement Contingency 
Response Plan(2)

$68,802 $178,690 $17,752 
$190,244 $217,330 
$28,537 $32,600 
$75,000 $75,000 

$293,781 $324,930 

Labor

M.1  Program Administration

I.1  Initial Phase 1 Monitoring Well Construction (Task Completed 
in Phase 1)

Comparative 
Costs from 

2023 Budget

For Tasks to be Undertaken in 2024

Task Subtask Sub-
Subtask

Cost Description

CONSULTANTS & CONTRACTORS(3)

Total

         Monitoring and Management Program Operations Budget                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

(No Costs are Included for This Task, as This Task Will Likely 
Not be Necessary During 2021.  If it Does Become Necessary, 
Use of Contingency Funds or a Budget Modification Will Likely 

be Necessary)
TOTALS CONSULTANTS & CONTRACTORS

SUBTOTAL not including Technical Program Manager =

Contingency (not including Technical Program Manager) @ 15%(4)=
Technical Program Manager =

TOTAL=

I.2  Production, Water Level and Quality Monitoring

I.3  Basin Management
(Costs Shown in Subtasks Below)

I.4  Seawater Intrusion Contingency Plan

(Costs Included Under I.4.a)

59



Footnotes:

(8) This cost is for  Montgomery and Associates, Todd Groundwater, and Martin Feeney to provide hydrogeologic consulting assistance to the 
Watermaster, beyond that associated with performing other specified Tasks, when requested to do so by the Technical Program Manager.  This 
work may include, but not be limited to, participation in conference calls and reviewing documents prepared by others.
(9) If work under this Task is found to be necessary, it will be funded through the Contingency line item in this Budget.

(1)  Under this Subtask the Watermaster will directly contract with an outside contractor to perform the Sentinel Well induction logging work, 
and to also collect water level data in conjunction with doing the induction logging.  MPWMD will perform the other portions of the work of this 
Subtask.  The Sentinel Wells will be induction logged once per year (in September).
(2)  The response plan would only be implemented in the event sea water intrusion is determined to be occurring. 
(3)  Within the context of this document the term “Consultant” refers either to a Private Consultant providing professional engineering or other 
types of technical services, or to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD).  The term “Contractor” refers to a firm 
providing construction or field services such as well drilling, induction logging, or meter calibration.
(4)  Due to the uncertainties of the exact scopes of some of the larger Tasks listed above at the time of preparation of this Budget it is 
recommended that a Contingency of 15% be included in the Budget.
(5)  The MPWMD portion of these Tasks includes:  

(6)  Does not include costs for MPWMD to collect water level data or water quality samples from wells other than those that are part of the basic 
monitoring well network, i.e. for private well owners who have requested that the Watermaster obtain this data for them.  Costs to obtain that 
data are to be reimbursed to the Watermaster by those well owners, so there should be no net cost to the Watermaster for that portion of the 
work under these Tasks.  
(7)  The BMAP was updated in 2018, and no further work on this Task is anticiapted in 2024.

     For Task I.2.b.2: (1) $527 for vehicle mileage costs for both this Task and Task I.2.b.3 and (2) $893 to purchase a replacement datalogger (if 
     For Task I.2.b.3: (1)  $5,670 for laboratory analytical costs, (2) $158 for air compressor rental to sample the Camp Huffman well, (3) $263 for 
CO2 bottles to run the sample pumps, (4) $945 to purchase a replacement low flow sampling pump (if necessary) and (5) $736 of administrative 
support costs for preparing billings and processing invoices from the water quality laboratory.

(16) MPWMD's costs to assist in this Task are included in its costs under Task I.2.b.6.
(17) MPWMD's and Montgomery & Associates' costs to provide oversight in this Task are included under their other Tasks.

(15)  Includes $300/month for an outside consultant to maintain the Watermaster's website and post documents on it and $2,300 for MPWMD to 
respond to requests from consultants and others for data from the database.

(10) This Task is included to provide funds for the Watermaster to perform modeling and other investigative work to aid in making Basin 
management decisions that the Board may wish to perform in 2024.  

(11) The Model was updated and recalibrated in 2018, so no costs for this Task are anticipated in 2024.
(12)  The protective water levels developed in 2009 were examined in 2013 to see if they needed to be updated.  It was concluded that the 2009 
protective levels were still satisfactory for Basin management purposes, and that no revisions were needed.  No work under this Task is 
anticipated in 2024.
(13)  This was a new Task that was started in 2018, and was completed for the PWM AWT water in 2019.  Funds allocated for this Task in 2024 
would only be used if geochemical modeling is performed in 2024 for the MPWSP desalination plant water, and if that modeling indicates the 
need to have Montgomery and Associates use the Seaside Basin groundwater model to provide additional information needed by the 
geochemical model to develop miitgation measures for any adverse water quality impacts the geochemical model predicts could occur from 
introducing desalinated water into the Basin.
(14)  Not used.

60



MPWMD Private 
Consultants

Contractors

Technical Project Manager $0 $75,000 $0 $75,000 

M.1.a Project Budget and Controls $0 $0 $0 $0 
M.1.b Assist with Board and TAC Agendas $0 $0 $0 $0 
M.1.c, 
M.1.d, & 
M.1.e

Preparation for and Attendance at Meetings 
and Peer Review of Documents and 
Reports(8)

$0 $20,116 $0 $20,116 

M.1.f QA/QC $0 $0 $0 $0 
M.1.g SGMA Documentation Preparation $0 $2,616 $0 $2,616 

I. 2. a. Database Management
I. 2. a. 1. Conduct Ongoing Data Entry/ Database 

Maintenance/Enhancement
$19,673 $3,708 $0 $23,381 

I. 2. a. 2. Verify Accuracy of Production Well Meters $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 2. b. Data Collection Program 
I. 2. b. 1. Site Representation and Selection(7) $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 2. b. 2. Collect Monthly Water Levels(6) $21,762 $0 $0 $21,762 

I. 2. b. 3. Collect Quarterly Water Quality 
Samples(1)(5)(6)

$21,315 $0 $18,285 $39,599 

I. 2. b. 4. Update Program Schedule and Standard 
Operating Procedures.  

$0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 2. b. 5. Monitor Well Construction(7) $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 2. b. 6. Reports $3,790 $0 $0 $3,790 
I. 2. b. 7. CASGEM Data Submittal for 

Watermaster's Voluntary Wells
$4,326 $0 $0 $4,326 

I. 3. a. Enhanced Seaside Basin Groundwater 
Model

I. 3. a. 1 Update the Existing Model(10) $0 $30,000 $0 $30,000 

I. 3. a. 2 Develop Protective Water Levels $0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 3. a. 3 Evaluate Replenishment Scenarios and 
Develop Answers to Basin Management 
Questions(15)

$0 $30,000 $0 $30,000 

I. 3. b. Complete Preparation of Basin 
Management Action Plan

$0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 3. c. Refine and/or Update the Basin 
Management Action Plan (11)

$0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 3. d Evaluate Coastal Wells for Cross-Aquifer 
Contamination Potential(13)

$0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 3. e Seaside Basin Geochemical Model(14) $0 $10,000 $0 $10,000 

I. 4. a. Oversight of Seawater Intrusion Detection 
and Tracking

$0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 4. b. Analyze and Map Water Quality from 
Coastal Monitoring Wells

I. 4. c. Annual Report- Seawater Intrusion Analysis $0 $28,861 $0 $28,861 

I. 4. e. Refine and/or Update the Seawater 
Intrusion Response Plan(2) (9)

$0 $0 $0 $0 

I. 4. f. If Seawater Intrusion is Determined to be 
Occurring, Implement Contingency 
Response Plan(2)

$70,866 $125,301 $18,285 
$214,451 
$32,168 
$75,000 

$321,619 TOTAL=

TOTALS CONSULTANTS & CONTRACTORS
SUBTOTAL not including Technical Program Manager =

(No Costs are Included for This Task, as This Task Will Likely Not be 
Necessary During 2019.  If it Does Become Necessary, Use of 

Contingency Funds or a Budget Modification Will Likely be 
Necessary)

(Costs Shown in Subtasks Below)

I.4  Seawater Intrusion Contingency Plan

I.3  Basin Management

I.2  Production, Water Level and Quality Monitoring

(Costs Included Under I.4.a)

Labor

M.1  Program Administration

Monitoring and Management Program Operations Budget 
For Tasks to be Undertaken in 2025(12)

Task Subtask Sub-
Subtask

Cost Description CONSULTANTS & CONTRACTORS(3) Total

I.1  Initial Phase 1 Monitoring Well Construction (Task Completed 
in Phase 1)

Contingency (not including Technical Program Manager) @ 15%(4)=
Technical Program Manager

61



Footnotes:

Watermaster, beyond that associated with performing other specified Tasks, when requested to do so by the Technical Program Manager.

(13) No further work on this Task is anticipated in 2025.

(10) The model was last updated in 2018.  Information subsequently gained through implementation of the Pure Water Monterey Project may warrant 
updating the model again in 2025.  Updating the model in 2018 cost $54,370 and that cost was shared 50% by the Watermaster and 50% by 
MPWMD/M1W.  The amount budgeted for this work assumes the 2025 update would cost approximately $60,000 and that this same cost-share 
would be used, so the estimated cost to the Watermaster would be $30,000.

(14) Work on this Task may not be performed in 2024, so work on this Task may need to be rebudgeted in 2025.

(12)  Includes a 3% inflation factor on most annually recurring costs in the 2024 Budget, except the Technical Program Manager cost which has no 
inflation factor applied to it.

(8) For Montgomery and Associates, Todd Groundwater, and Martin Feeney to provide hydrogeologic consulting assistance to the 

(9) If work under this Task is found to be necessary, it will be funded through the Contingency line item in this Budget.

(11) The BMAP was updated in 2018, and no further work on this Task is anticiapted in 2025.

(7)  No additional monitoring well is expected to be constructed in 2025.

(1)  Under this Subtask the Watermaster will directly contract with an outside contractor to perform the Sentinel Well induction logging work, and to 
also collect water level data in conjunction with doing the induction logging.  MPWMD will perform the other portions of the work of this Subtask.

(6)  Does not include costs for MPWMD to collect water level data or water quality samples from wells other than those that are part of the basic 
monitoring well network, i.e. for private well owners who have requested that the Watermaster obtain this data for them.  Costs to obtain that data are 
to be reimbursed to the Watermaster by those well owners, so there should be no net cost to the Watermaster for that portion of the work under 
these Tasks.

(2)  The response plan would only be implemented in the event sea water intrusion is determined to be occurring. 
(3)  Within the context of this document the term “Consultant” refers either to a Private Consultant providing professional engineering or other types of 
technical services, or to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD).  The term “Contractor” refers to a firm providing construction 
or field services such as well drilling, induction logging, or meter calibration.
(4)  Due to the uncertainties of the exact scopes of some of the Tasks listed above at the time of preparation of this Budget, it is recommended that a 
15% Contingency be included in the Budget.
(5)  A portion of this cost is for maintaining sampling equipment that was installed in prior years.

(15) This Task is included to provide funds for the Watermaster to perform modeling and other investigative work to aid in making Basin management 
decisions that the Board may wish to perform in 2025.  

62



 
 
 
 
 
 

Monitoring and Management Program Capital Budget 
For Tasks to be Undertaken in 2025  

         
No Capital projects are anticipated to be undertaken in 2025, so this 

budget is $0. 
 

Monitoring and Management Program Capital Budget 
For Tasks to be Undertaken in 2024

No Capital projects are anticipated to be undertaken in 2024, so this budget 
is $0.

63



64



 

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Item VIII.A.3.
Replenishment Fund 9/6/23

Water Year 2024 (October 1 - September 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2023) Page 1
Proposed 2024 Budget

Replenishment Fund 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Assessment Water Year WY 05/06 WY 06/07 WY 07/08 WY 08/09 WY 09/10 WY 10/11 WY 11/12 WY 12/13 WY 13/14 WY 14/15 WY 15/16
Unit Cost: a $1,132 / $283 $1,132 / $283 $2,485 / 621.25 $3,040 / $760 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,702/$675.50 $2,702/$675.50 $2,702/$675.50

b -$                         1,641,004$          4,226,710$          (2,871,690)$        (2,839,939)$        (3,822,219)$        (6,060,164)$        (8,735,671)$        (6,173,771)$        (3,102,221)$            (676,704)$           
Cal-Am Water Production (AF) c 3,710.00             4,059.90             3,862.90             2,966.02             3,713.52             3,416.04             3,070.90             3,076.61             3,232.10            2,764.73                 1,879.21             

Cal-Am Water NSY Over-Production (AF) d 1,862.69             2,266.32             2,092.16             1,241.27             1,479.47             1,146.71             820.48                856.42                1,032.77            782.17                            - 

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield Considering 
Alternative Producers e  $          2,106,652  $         2,565,471  $          5,199,014  $         3,773,464  $         4,112,933  $         3,187,854  $         2,280,943  $         2,380,842  $         2,790,539  $             2,113,414  $                      -   

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment f -$                          $              20,235  $                 8,511  $                        -  $                        -  $                        -  $            154,963  $            181,057  $            281,012  $                312,103  $                      -   
Total California American g  $          2,106,652  $         2,585,706  $          5,207,525  $         3,773,464  $         4,112,933  $         3,187,854  $         2,435,907  $         2,561,899  $         3,071,550  $             2,425,516 

CAW Credit Against Assessment h (465,648)$            (12,305,924)$       (3,741,714)$        (5,095,213)$        (5,425,799)$        (5,111,413)$        

CAW Unpaid Balance i 1,641,004$         4,226,710$         (2,871,690)          (2,839,939)$        (3,822,219)$        (6,060,164)$        (8,735,671)$        (6,173,771)$        (3,102,221)$       (676,704)$               (676,704)$           

City of Seaside Balance Forward j -$                         243,294$             426,165$             1,024,272$          1,619,973$          891,509$             (110,014)$           (773,813)$           (1,575,876)$        (2,889,325)$            (3,346,548)$        

City of Seaside Municipal Production (AF) k 332.00                287.70                294.20                293.44                282.87                240.68                233.72                257.73                223.64               185.01                    195.16                

City of Seaside NSY Over-Production (AF) l 194.07                153.78                161.99                153.06                113.21                50.84                  58.82                  85.17                  52.71                 25.77 37.87
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield Considering 
Alternative Producers m  $             219,689  $            174,082  $             402,540  $            465,300  $            314,721  $            141,335  $            163,509  $            236,782  $            142,410  $                  69,630  $            102,330 

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment n  $               12,622  $                     85  $                 4,225  $              16,522  $              20,690  $                      -    $                1,689  $              27,007  $                3,222  $                         38  $              11,959 

Total Municipal o  $             232,310  $            174,167  $             406,764  $            481,823  $            335,412  $            141,335  $            165,198  $            263,788  $            145,631  $                  69,667  $            114,290 

City of Seaside - Golf Courses (APA - 540 AFY)
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - Alternative 
Producer p -$                     -$                    131,705$             69,701$               -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                        -$                    

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment q -$                     -$                    32,926$               17,427$               -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                        -$                    

Total Golf Courses r -$                     -$                    164,631$             87,128$               -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                        -$                    

Total City of Seaside* s  $             232,310  $            174,167  $             571,395  $            568,951  $            335,412  $            141,335  $            165,198  $            263,788  $            145,631  $                  69,667  $            114,290 
City of Seaside Late Payment 5% t  $               10,984  $                8,704  $               26,712  $              26,750  $              15,737 

In-lieu Credit Against Assessment u (1,079,613)$        (1,142,858)$        (828,996)$           (1,065,852)$        (1,459,080)$        (526,890)$               (162)$                  

City of Seaside Unpaid Balance v 243,294$            426,165$            1,024,272$         1,619,973$         891,509$            (110,014)$           (773,813)$           (1,575,876)$        (2,889,325)$       (3,346,548)$            (3,232,420)$        

Mission Memorial Park

Mission Memorial Park Production (AF) w 20.80                  26.40                  12.80                  22.40                  27.00                  24.95                  24.89                 17.97                      13.67                  

Mission Memorial Park NSY Over-Production (AF) x -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                          -                      
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - Alternative 
Producer y -$                     -$                    -$                     -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                        -$                    

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment z -$                     -$                    -$                     -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                        -$                    

Total Mission Memorial Park aa -$                     -$                    -$                     -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                        -$                    

Total Replenishment Fund Balance bb 1,884,298$          4,652,874$          (1,847,417)$         (1,219,966)$        (2,930,710)$        (6,170,178)$        (9,509,483)$        (7,749,648)$        (5,991,546)$        (4,023,252)$            (3,909,125)$        

Replenishment Fund Balance Forward cc  $                      -   1,884,298$          4,652,874$          (1,847,417)$        (1,219,966)$        (2,930,710)$        (6,170,178)$        (9,509,483)$        (7,749,648)$        (5,991,546)$            (4,023,252)$        
Total Replenishment Assessments dd  $          2,349,946  $         2,768,576  $          5,805,632  $         4,369,165  $         4,464,082  $         3,329,189  $         2,601,104  $         2,825,688  $         3,217,182  $             2,495,183  $            114,290 
Total Paid and/or Credited ee  $           (465,648)  $                      -    $      (12,305,924)  $        (3,741,714)  $        (6,174,826)  $        (6,568,657)  $        (5,940,409)  $        (1,065,852)  $       (1,459,080)  $               (526,890)  $                  (162)
Grand Total Fund Balance ff 1,884,298$          4,652,874$          (1,847,417)$         (1,219,966)$        (2,930,710)$        (6,170,178)$        (9,509,483)$        (7,749,648)$        (5,991,546)$        (4,023,252)$            (3,909,125)$        

  2015 = 195.0 AF golf course in-lieu
  2016 = 00.06 AF golf course in-lieu
  2017 = 00.00 AF golf course in-lieu

Cal-Am Water Balance Forward

* 2010 = 319.55 AF golf course in-lieu replenishment and 68.8 AF 4-party agmt in-lieu replenishment
  2011 = 411.1 AF golf course in-lieu replenishment
  2012 = 298.2 AF golf course in-lieu replenishment
  2013 = 383.4 AF golf course in-lieu replenishment
  2014 = 552.4 AF golf course in-lieu capped at 540 AF

65



 

Item VIII.A.3.
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 9/6/23

Replenishment Fund Page 2
Water Year 2024 (October 1 - September 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2023)

Proposed 2024 Budget

Replenishment Fund 2017 2018 2019 2020 WY 2021 WY 2022
 Budget            
WY 2023

Totals WY 2006 
Through 2023

 Budget            
WY 2024

Projected Totals 
Through WY 2024

Assessment Water Year WY 16/17 WY 17/18 WY 18/19 WY 19/20 WY 20/21 WY 21/22 WY 22/23 WY 22/23
Unit Cost: a $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,947 / $737 $3,260/ $815 $3,461/ $865 $3,461/ $865

b (676,704)$            (491,747)$           (48,797,949)$       (47,979,852)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      
Cal-Am Water Production (AF) c 2,029.51             2,229.45             2,120.22             2,245.88             1,664.04             1,648.71                         47,689.74 
Cal-Am Water NSY Over-Production (AF) d 64.40                  374.65                284.85                334.21                                     -              14,638.57 

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield Considering 
Alternative Producers e  $             184,957  $         1,075,995  $             818,097  $            959,859  $                  -  -$                    -$                    33,550,034$        -$                    33,550,034$            

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment f  $            164,872  $                  -  -$                    -$                     $         1,122,753 -$                    1,122,753$              
Total California American g  $             184,957  $         1,075,995  $             818,097  $         1,124,731  $                        - -$                        -$                         $       34,672,786 -$                         $           34,672,786 

CAW Credit Against Assessment h (49,382,196)$       $                  -   $                  -   $                  -  -$                    -$                     $      (81,527,907) -$                    (81,527,907)$          

CAW Unpaid Balance i (491,747)$           (48,797,949)$      (47,979,852)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$      (46,855,121)$     (46,855,121)$          

City of Seaside Balance Forward j (3,232,420)$         (3,142,500)$        (3,022,249)$         (2,919,806)$        (2,802,831)$        (2,708,828)$        (2,661,183)$        (2,661,183)$        
City of Seaside Municipal Production (120.28 AF) k 188.31                184.63                178.40                181.65                174.69 155.12               3,888.95 
City of Seaside NSY Over-Production (AF) l 30.47                  32.46                  27.82                  32.06                  25.52                                1,235.62 

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield Considering 
Alternative Producers m  $               87,512  $              93,225  $               79,893  $              92,089  $              75,197  $              38,116  $                      -   2,898,359$           $                     -   2,898,359$              

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment n  $                 2,409  $              27,026  $               22,550  $              24,886  $              18,806  $                9,529  $                      -    $            203,263  $                     -   203,263$                 
Total Municipal o  $               89,920  $            120,251  $             102,443  $            116,975  $              94,003  $              47,645  $                      -    $         3,101,622  $                     -    $             3,101,622 

City of Seaside - Golf Courses (APA - 540 AFY)
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - Alternative 
Producer p -$                     -$                    $                  -  $                    -  $                  -   $            201,406  $                201,406 

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment q -$                     -$                    $                  -  $                    -  $                  -   $              50,353 50,353$                   
Total Golf Courses r -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                     $            251,759 251,759$                 

Total City of Seaside* s  $               89,920  $            120,251  $             102,443  $            116,975  $              94,003  $              47,645  $                        -  $         3,353,381  $                       -  $             3,353,381 
City of Seaside Late Payment 5% t  $              88,887  $                  88,887 

In-lieu Credit Against Assessment u                        -                        -                        -  $        (6,103,451)                        - (6,103,451)$            
City of Seaside Unpaid Balance v (3,142,500)$        (3,022,249)$        (2,919,806)$        (2,802,831)$        (2,708,828)$        (2,661,183)$        (2,661,183)$        (2,661,183)$        (2,661,183)$       (2,661,183)$            

Mission Memorial Park (APA - 31 AFY)
Mission Memorial Park Production (AF) w 13.74                  14.43                  16.07                  20.00                  46.77 31.00                  332.89
Mission Memorial Park NSY Over-Production (AF) x -                      -                                          -                       -  15.77                  58.00                  73.77

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - Alternative 
Producer y -$                     -$                    -$                     $                  -  46,488$               9,608$                  $              56,096 56,096$                   

Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment z -$                     -$                    -$                     $                  -  11,626$               2,402$                  $              14,028 14,028$                   
Board Approved (5/4/22) Credit Against Assessment (33,114)                                      -  $             (33,114)                        - (33,114)$                 
Mission Memorial Park Unpaid Balance aa -$                     -$                     -$                     $              25,000  $              12,010  $              28,510 28,510$                   

Total Replenishment Fund Balance bb (3,634,247)$         (51,820,198)$      (50,899,658)$       (49,657,952)$      (49,538,949)$      (49,504,294)$      (49,516,304)$      (49,487,794)$      (49,516,304)$      (49,516,304)$          

Replenishment Fund Balance Forward cc (3,909,125)$         (3,634,247)$        (51,820,198)$       (50,899,658)$      (49,657,952)$      (49,538,949)$      (49,504,294)$      (49,516,304)$      
Total Replenishment Assessments dd  $             274,877  $         1,196,246  $             920,540  $         1,241,706  $            119,003  $              59,655  $                      -    $       38,152,064  $                     -   38,152,064$            
Total Paid and/or Credited ee  $      (49,382,196)  $             (25,000)  $               (3,510)  $      (87,659,868)  $                     -   (87,659,868)$          
Funds Expended (transfer to Admin Fund)  $               (8,500)  $               (8,500) (8,500)$                   
Grand Total Fund Balance ff (3,634,247)$         (51,820,198)$      (50,899,658)$       (49,657,952)$      (49,538,949)$      (49,504,294)$      (49,516,304)$       $      (49,516,304) (49,516,304)$      (49,516,304)$          

Cal-Am Water Balance Forward

66



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER  VIII.B. 
 

TO: Watermaster Board of Directors 
FROM: Laura Paxton, Administrative Officer and Robert Jaques, Technical Program Manager 
DATE: September 6, 2023 
SUBJECT: Water Year 2024 Overproduction Replenishment Assessment Unit Costs for Water  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
RECOMMENDATION: The Watermaster Budget and Finance Committee at its August 21, 2023 meeting 
recommended the board adopt the strait average Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost of $3,442/AF and 
$860.50/AF for Natural Safe Yield and Operating Yield Overproduction, respectively, for Water Year 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND: Per page 33 of the Decision, “The per acre-foot (AF) amount of the Replenishment 
Assessments shall be determined and declared by Watermaster in October of each Water Year in order to provide 
Parties with advance knowledge of the cost of Over-Production in that Water Year.” Thus, the per acre-foot 
amount determined by the Board on or before October of 2023 will be used to calculate Replenishment 
Assessments for pumping that occurs during Water Year 2024 (October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024). 
 
For Water Years 2014, 2015, and 2016 the Board adopted a Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost of $2,702/AF 
for Natural Safe Yield Overproduction. This unit cost was developed starting with Water Year 2014 by taking 
the average of the Base Unit Cost ($/AF) of the four potential water supply projects that the Board felt were the 
most likely to be implemented. For Water Year 2017 the Board adopted a revised Replenishment Assessment 
Unit Cost of $2,872. This revised Unit Cost was calculated using updated unit cost data for the three projects 
which the Board at that time felt were the most likely to be implemented. The number of projects was reduced 
from four to three, because when the WY 2017 Unit Cost was being calculated, it was determined that two of the 
previous four projects (Regional Desalination and the Pure Water Monterey Groundwater Replenishment 
Projects) would be part of a combined project referred to as the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project 
(MPWSP). The unit cost for Water Year 2017 was carried over to the three subsequent Water Years because no 
updated cost data was available for those projects, and no other viable projects could be identified. In 2020, a 
blended unit cost value was provided for the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project based on a reduced size 
desalination plant offset by water to be provided by the Pure Water Monterey Project. Based on the updated Pure 
Water Monterey Project’s unit cost, the blended unit cost for that combined project was updated from $4,591/AF 
to $4,817/AF, resulting in a Water Year 2021 Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost of $2,947/AF. In 2022, a 
blended unit cost value was calculated for the MPWSP based on an updated PWM unit cost for 3,500AF of 
potential volume from the project. The blended unit cost for that combined project was updated from $4,817/AF 
to $4,948/AF. For purposes of the 2022 Replenishment Assess Unit Cost calculation, $2,808 was used as the 
RUWAP cost/AF. In 2023, a blended unit cost value was calculated for the MPWSP based on an updated PWM 
and PWMX unit cost for an increased 5,750AF of potential volume from both projects. The blended unit cost for 
the combined projects was updated from $4,948/AF to $4,872/AF. 
 
DISCUSSION: The attached 2024 Table of calculations includes the same actual and estimated project costs as 
2023. Beginning in 2024, both flow-weighted and straight average unit costs of the combined desalination, PWM 
and PWMX projects are presented in the table footnotes for the committee to consider: 

1) A flow-weighted average unit cost of the combined desalination and PWM and PWMX projects is (6,250 
x $6,147 + 5,750 x $3,486)/12,000 = $4,872. 

2) A straight average unit cost of the combined desalination and PWM and PWMX projects is ($6,147 + 
$3,486)/2 = $4,817. 

The proposed Replenishment Assessment Unit Costs would therefore be: 
3) Flow-weighted = $3,461/AF, calculated as: ($4,872+$2,025+$3,486)/3. These are the three bold-

faced unit costs in the attached Table. Operating Yield Over Production Replenishment Assessment 
Unit Cost = 25% of that amount, or $865. 

4) Straight average = $3,442/AF, calculated as ($4,817+2,025+$3,486)/3. Operating Yield Over 
Production Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost = 25% of that amount, or $860.50. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 2024 Unit Cost Data Table (footnotes (3) & (6) only updated information from 2023) 

67



POTENTIAL SOURCE OF 
REPLENISHMENT WATER

POTENTIAL DATE 
REPLENISHMENT WATER 

COULD BECOME 
AVAILABLE

POTENTIAL VOLUME OF 
WATER THAT COULD BE 

SUPPLIED BY THE PROJECT 
(AFY) (1)

BASE UNIT 
COST ($/AF)

BASE UNIT 
COST YEAR 

Regional Desalination(2) 2024 6,250 $6,147 2021

Pure Water Monterey and PWMX(6) 2020 5,750 $3,486 2021

Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project 
(Combined Regional Desalination with 
Groundwater Replenishment Project)

PWM in 2020, Regional 
Desalination in 2024 12,000 $4,872(3) 2022

Seaside Basin ASR Expansion (4) 2021 1,000 $2,025 2016

Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project (5) 2021 1,400-1,700 $3,486 2021

FOOTNOTES:

ANTICIPATED UNIT COSTS OF WATER COULD POTENTIALLY BE USED FOR 
REPLENISHMENT OF THE SEASIDE BASIN

(1)  For the Regional Desalination Project this is the total amount of water from this source which could potentially come to the CAW distribution 
system, based on the desalination plant having a 6.4 MGD capacity which is equivalent to 7,169 AFY.  Only a portion of this amount might be available 
as initially unused capacity that could be used to help replenish the Seaside Basin.  For the RUWAP this is the total amount of non-potable water from 
this source.  Only a portion of this amount might be used for in-lieu replenishment of the Seaside Basin.  For the ASR Expansion Project this is the 
additional amount of water that could potentially be provided by this project (see footnote 4).  For the PWM and PWMX this is the quantity of water 
that is being planned at this time by CAW for inclusion in its Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project.  Note that if the desalination plant is not built, 
PWM and PWMX will to to bear conveyance, pumping, and delivery.

(2)  Base unit cost data based on PUC filing documents and provided by Dave Stoldt of MPWMD .  The unit cost was confirmed in August 2021 by Ian 
Crooks of Cal Am as being the latest unit cost available for this project.    Note that if the desalination plant is not built, PWM and PWMX will to to 
bear conveyance, pumping, and delivery.

WATER YEAR 2023 (October 1, 2022-September 30, 2023)

(3)  Flow-weighted average unit cost of the combined desalination and groundwater replenishment projects, calculated as:
                   (6,250x$6,147 + 5,750x$3,486)/12,000 = $4,872.
(4)  Base unit cost data provided by MPWMD in 2016.  No updated unit cost was provided for this project.  The 1,000 AFY of potential water that this 
project could supply would be in addition to the 1,300 AFY included as part of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project, and would be an annual 
average taking into account river flow and hydrologic conditions that change from year to year.

(5) Project data updated in 2022.  Patrick Breen of MCWD noted that to determine total cost per acre-foot, use the $3,486/acre-foot cost from Pure 
Water Monterey (which wold be RUWAP as well) and add MCWD O&M and Financing costs to be determined.

68



POTENTIAL SOURCE OF 
REPLENISHMENT WATER

POTENTIAL DATE 
REPLENISHMENT WATER 

COULD BECOME 
AVAILABLE

POTENTIAL VOLUME OF 
WATER THAT COULD BE 

SUPPLIED BY THE PROJECT 
(AFY) (1)

BASE UNIT 
COST ($/AF)

BASE UNIT 
COST YEAR 

Regional Desalination(2) 2024 6,250 $6,147 2021

Pure Water Monterey and PWMX(6) 2020 5,750 $3,486 2021

Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project 
(Combined Regional Desalination with PWM and 

PWMX Projects)

PWM in 2020, Regional 
Desalination in 2024 12,000 $4,872(3) 2022

Seaside Basin ASR Expansion (4) 2021 1,000 $2,025 2016

Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project (5) 2021 1,400-1,700 $3,486 2021

FOOTNOTES:

(4)  Base unit cost data provided by MPWMD in 2016.  No updated unit cost was provided for this project.  The 1,000 AFY of potential water that this 
project could supply would be in addition to the 1,300 AFY included as part of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project, and would be an annual 
average taking into account river flow and hydrologic conditions that change from year to year.

(5) Project data updated in 2022.  Patrick Breen of MCWD noted that to determine total cost per acre-foot, use the $3,486/acre-foot cost from Pure 
Water Monterey (which wold be RUWAP as well) and add MCWD O&M and Financing costs which are yet to be determined.

      Straight average unit cost of the combined desalination and PWM and PWMX projects, calculated as:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                   ($6,147 + $3,486)/2 = $4,817.

                   (6,250x$6,147 + 5,750x$3,486)/12,000 = $4,872. 

WATER YEAR 2024 (October 1, 2023-September 30, 2024)

ANTICIPATED UNIT COSTS OF WATER COULD POTENTIALLY BE USED FOR 
REPLENISHMENT OF THE SEASIDE BASIN

(1)  For the Regional Desalination Project this is the total amount of water from this source which could potentially come to the CAW distribution 
system, based on the desalination plant having a 6.4 MGD capacity which is equivalent to 7,169 AFY.  Only a portion of this amount might be available 
as initially unused capacity that could be used to help replenish the Seaside Basin.  For the RUWAP this is the total amount of non-potable water from 
this source.  Only a portion of this amount might be used for in-lieu replenishment of the Seaside Basin.  For the ASR Expansion Project this is the 
additional amount of water that could potentially be provided by this project (see footnote 4).  For the PWM and PWMX this is the quantity of water 
that is being planned at this time by CAW for inclusion in its Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project.  

(2)  Base unit cost data based on PUC filing documents and provided by Dave Stoldt of MPWMD .  The unit cost was confirmed in August 2021 by Ian 
Crooks of Cal Am as being the latest unit cost available for this project.    
(3)  Flow-weighted average unit cost of the combined desalination and PWM and PWMX projects, calculated as:

69



70



71



72



Type Oct Nov Dec Oct-Dec Jan Feb Mar Jan-Mar Apr May Jun Apr-Jun Jul Aug Sep Jul-Sep Reported Total Yield Allocation
from WY 

2022
for WY 

2023

Coastal Subareas
CAW - Coastal Subareas SPA 497.16 410.19 389.22 1,296.57 370.86 475.09 659.11 1,505.05 585.36 606.31 99.22 1,290.89 0.00 0.00 1,417.55 1,466.03 110.45 1,576.48

Luzern 49.71 0.00 0.00 49.71 0.08 21.35 52.18 73.61 49.92 52.09 8.35 110.36 0.00 233.67    
Ord Grove 107.26 101.65 107.01 315.92 107.13 103.08 125.80 336.00 123.14 125.76 25.68 274.58 0.00 926.50    

Paralta 128.77 119.63 95.62 344.02 93.48 130.05 183.04 406.57 168.46 186.59 106.98 462.03 0.00 1,212.62    
Playa 32.86 32.92 33.50 99.28 33.69 30.01 31.91 95.60 31.54 32.73 1.04 65.31 0.00 260.20    

Plumas 27.64 26.92 27.46 82.03 27.60 24.67 26.76 79.04 23.50 26.82 0.85 51.17 0.00 212.23    
Santa Margarita 150.92 129.07 125.62 405.62 108.88 165.93 239.42 514.23 188.79 182.32 162.21 533.32 0.00 1,453.17    

ASR Recovery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (205.88) (205.88) 0.00 (205.88)    
PWM Recovery (404.79) (333.96) (359.30) (1098.05) (339.81) (436.43) (498.90) (1,275.15) (301.76) 0.00 0.00 (301.76) 0.00 (2,674.96)    

City of Seaside (Municipal) SPA 15.26 11.75 10.85 37.86 11.05 13.22 10.07 34.34 12.54 14.66 14.00 41.20 0.00 113.40 120.28 0 120.28
Granite Rock Company SPA  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.35 249.6 260.95
DBO Development No. 30 SPA  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.59 447.12 467.71
Calabrese (Cypress Pacific Inv.) SPA  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.76 13.69 16.45
City of Seaside (Golf Courses) APA 41.260 0.00 0.00 41.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 41.26 540.00 540.00
Sand City APA 0.16 0.14 0.06 0.36 0.07 0.18 0.00 0.25 0.06 0.14 0.08 0.28 0.00 0.89 9.00 9.00

APA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90.00 90.00
APA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.00 59.00

Calabrese (Cypress Pacific Inv.) APA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.00 6.00
Mission Memorial (Alderwoods) APA 3.47 1.01 0.65 5.13 0.78 0.36 0.25 1.40 0.82 1.71 4.89 7.43 0.00 13.96 31.00 31.00

Coastal Subareas Totals 283.14 265.89 1,038.04 0.00 1,587.06 2,356.01 820.86 3,176.87

Laguna Seca Subarea
CAW - Laguna Seca Subarea SPA 12.42 10.03 8.35 30.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.79 0.00 0.00

Ryan Ranch Unit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hidden Hills Unit 12.42 10.03 8.35 30.79 7.82 6.93 7.47 22.22 8.66 11.26 13.96 33.88 0.00 86.90

Bishop Unit 3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Bishop Unit 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

The Club at Pasadera APA 19.00 0.00 0.00 19.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 31.00 20.00 51.00 0.00 70.00 251.00 251.00
Laguna Seca Golf Resort (Bishop) APA 20.00 5.17 0.00 25.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.12 15.96 29.18 51.26 0.00 76.43 320.00 320.00
York School APA 1.40 0.12 0.02 1.54 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.01 1.25 1.33 2.48 5.07 0.00 6.62 32.00 32.00
Laguna Seca County Park APA 1.17 1.14 0.15 2.46 0.47 0.25 0.84 1.56 2.85 3.63 1.98 8.46 0.00 12.48 41.00 41.00

Laguna Seca Subarea Totals 78.96 1.58 115.79 0.00 196.33 644.00 0.00 644.00

Total Production by WM Producers 362.09 267.46 1,153.83 0.00 1,783.39 3,000.01 820.86 3,820.87
Annual Production from APA Producers 221.64 1,379.00
Annual Production from SPA Producers 1,561.75 2,441.87

CAW / MPWMD ASR (Carmel River Basin source water) Previous Balance Total

Injection 0.00 0.00 37.49 37.49 244.16 323.50 299.63 867.29 344.76 406.89 0.00 751.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,656.42
(Recovery) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (205.88) (205.88) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (205.88)

Net ASR 0.00 0.00 37.49 37.49 244.16 323.50 299.63 867.29 344.76 406.89 (205.88) 545.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,450.53 801.55 2,252.08

Pure Water Monterey (PWM) Injection and Cal-Am Recovery 
Balance 
Forward

Injection Operating Reserve 1,164.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,164.52
Injection Drought Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Delivery to Basin 349.81 333.96 397.41 1081.18 423.25 379.74 434.04 1237.03 0.00 303.12 350.42 653.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,971.75
CAW (404.79) (333.96) (359.30) (1,098.05) (339.81) (436.43) (498.90) (1,275.14) (301.76) 0.00 0.00 (301.76) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (2,674.95)

296.80
Balance 
Forward

City of Seaside Golf Course Recycled Water Use/Municipal Potable Water Recovery 2,361AF Max Previous Balance Total
In-lieu Storage/Recycled Water Use 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.54 0.66 11.20 34.22 83.29 66.54 184.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 195.25 0.0 195.25
City of Seaside Municipal Extraction 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00

Net In-lieu 0.00 11.20 34.22 83.29 66.54 184.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 195.25 0.0 195.25

05/27/21: Bishop Wells #1 and #3 physically disconnected from the distribution system. 
The Monterey Main to Ryan Ranch & Bishop Intertie was opened on 12/08/20 

06/21/21: Ryan Ranch Wells #7, #8, and #11 physically disconnected from the distribution system.

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER
Reported Quarterly and Annual Water Production From the Seaside Groundwater Basin

For All Producers Included in the Seaside Basin Adjudication -- Water Year 2023
(All Values in Acre-Feet [AF])

SNG (Security National Guaranty) /
 MLDC (Mountain Lake Dev. Corp.)

Notes:
1. The Water Year (WY) begins October 1 and ends September 30 of the following calendar year.  For example, WY 2023 begins on October 1, 2022, and ends on September 30, 2023.

2.  "Type" refers to water right as described in Seaside Basin Adjudication decision as amended, signed February 9, 2007 (Monterey County Superior Court Case No. M66343).

3.  Values shown in the table are based on reports to the Watermaster received by July 15, 2023.

4. All values are rounded to the nearest hundredth of an acre-foot.  Where required, reported data were converted to acre-feet utilizing the relationships:  325,851 gallons = 43,560 cubic feet = 1 acre-foot.

5.  "Base Operating Yield Allocation" values are based on Seaside Basin Adjudication decision.  These values are consistent with the Watermaster Producer Allocations Water Year 2023 (see  Item IX.B. in 12/7/2022 Board packet).

6.  Any minor discrepancies in totals are attributable to rounding.

7. APA = Alternative Producer Allocation; SPA = Standard Producer Allocation; CAW = California American Water.

8.  It should be noted that CAW/MPWMD ASR "Injection" and "Recovery" amounts are not expected to "balance" within each Water Year.  This is due to the injection recovery "rules" that are part of SWRCB water rights permits 
and/or separate agreements with state and federal resources agencies that are associated with the water rights permits.

9.  Cal-Am Toro Well #3 Destroyed 09/30/21

73



74



D-R-A-F-T 
MINUTES 

 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Technical Advisory Committee Meeting 

August 9, 2023 
 

 
Attendees: TAC Members 

City of Seaside – Carolyn Burke 
California American Water – Tim O’Halloran  
City of Monterey – No Representative 
Laguna Seca Property Owners – No Representative 
MPWMD – Jon Lear 
MCWRA – Guillermo Diaz Moreno 
City of Del Rey Oaks – Kim Shirley 
City of Sand City –Leon Gomez  
Coastal Subarea Landowners – No Representative 
 
Watermaster 
Technical Program Manager – Robert Jaques 
 
Consultants 
Montgomery & Associates – Pascual Benito (via telephone) 
Montgomery & Associates – Derrik Williams on behalf of the SVBGSA 
 
Others 
Sarah Hardgrave – SVBGSA 
MCWD – Patrick Breen    

_____________________________________________________________________ 
The meeting was convened at 1:36 p.m.  
 
1.  Public Comments 
Ms. Hardgrave provided a brief introduction of her new role with the Salinas Valley Basin 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency. She asked to be added to the listserv for future TAC 
meeting announcements. Mr. Jaques will do that. 
2. Administrative Matters: 

A. Approve Minutes from the July 12, 2023 Meeting 
On a motion by Mr. O’Halloran, seconded by Mr. Gomez, the minutes were unanimously 
approved as presented. 
 
B. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) Update 
Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item and there was no other 
discussion. 
 

3. Progress Report on FO-9 Replacement Well 
Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item and there was no other 
discussion. 

75



4. Progress Report on Damage to Sentinel Well No. 4 
Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item. Mr. Lear reported that 
MPWMD was also on the waitlist for well drilling activities just as the Watermaster’s request 
is. 
 
5. Presentation on Development of the Seawater Intrusion Model for the Salinas Valley 

Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Mr. Jaques introduced this item. Ms. Hardgrave said that the STB GSA will be using this model 
to evaluate various groundwater sustainability plan projects. 
 
Mr. Williams provided a PowerPoint presentation, the slides of which are attached to these 
meeting minutes. Some of the points he made in his presentation included: 

• A draft seawater intrusion model was released some time ago and the consultants are 
currently incorporating comments that were received.  

• The model will be used by the SVBGSA as well as others.  
• It will be used to address seawater intrusion issues related to projects in the northern part 

of the Salinas Valley.  
• It is a density dependent model.  
• There is only a small amount of offshore geologic data, therefore they had to extrapolate 

the aquifers offshore. Some of the aquifers daylight in the Monterey Canyon area of 
Monterey Bay.  

• The model used several other models to inform it. These included the Salinas Valley 
Groundwater Basin Model, the EKI Monterey Subbasin Model prepared for Marina 
Coast Water District, Cal Am’s North Marina Model, and the Salinas Valley Integrated 
Hydrologic Model.  They did the best they could to match the various models together. 

• The SWI model is focused on the 180/400-foot Aquifer and Monterey Subbasins 
because these are where most of the seawater intrusion is known to exist. 

• Since no seawater intrusion has been detected in the Seaside Groundwater Basin, they 
were not able to use the model there because they do not know where the 
seawater/freshwater interface is located. 

• Projects they will be looking at with the aid of the SWI model include: 
o An extraction barrier coupled with reuse of desalinated water. The extraction 

barrier would be a series of wells that would pull in seawater from the bay and 
also pull out inland intruded water. 

o Injection/temporary storage of Salinas River water in the 180/400-Foot Aquifer 
Subbasin. This would be similar to an ASR project with some of the injected 
water left in the basin to push out seawater intrusion. 

o Demand reduction. 
• They will be using the 500 mg/L chloride isocontour as the metric for movement of the 

seawater intrusion front. 
• The model matches well with MCWRA’s isocontours in the 180 foot aquifer. In the 400 

foot aquifer it also matches pretty well including locations where there are islands of 
intrusion. However, it shows some seawater intrusion in the Seaside Groundwater Basin 
which is not there, so it is not accurate there and should not be used in that basin. They 
are working on correcting geologic discrepancies near the Seaside Groundwater 
Basin/Monterey Subbasin boundary, as well as inaccurate seawater intrusion simulations 
in the Seaside Groundwater Basin. They don’t know how far offshore the seawater 

76



intrusion front is adjacent to the Seaside Groundwater Basin, so the model will not be 
useful for predicting seawater intrusion in the Seaside Groundwater Basin. They are also 
working on groundwater elevation calibration inaccuracies in the Salinas Valley. 

 
Mr. Williams responded to various questions throughout the presentation. 
 
6. Approve Monitoring and Management Program (M&MP) for FY 2024 
Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item. Ms. Shirley confirmed that 
her July 12th requested revision had been satisfactorily incorporated. On a motion by Ms. 
Shirley, seconded by Mr. Gomez, the 2024 Monitoring and Management Program was 
unanimously approved as presented. 
 
7. Approve the FY 2024 Monitoring and Management Program (M&MP) Operations 

and Capital Budgets 
Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item. On a motion by Mr. Lear, 
seconded by Mr. O’Halloran, the 2024 Monitoring and Management Program budgets were 
unanimously approved as presented. 
 
8. Schedule 
Mr. Jaques reported that at this point it does not appear there will need to be a TAC meeting in 
the month of September. If that is the case Mr. Jaques will send out a TAC meeting cancellation 
notice.  
 
Mr. Lear asked Mr. Jaques to briefly describe TAC activities for the rest of the year for the 
benefit of those who were new members of the TAC. Mr. Jaques described the steps involved in 
preparing the Annual Report, and highlighted that the November TAC meeting would be on the 
third Wednesday, rather than the normal second Wednesday, to allow consultants time to 
complete preparation of documents that need to be included in the Annual Report. 
 
9. Other Business 

Ms. Burke asked Mr. Jaques if any progress had been made with regard to allowing the TAC to 
have future meetings by Zoom rather than in-person. Mr. Jaques said that he was having this 
matter researched with the newly retained legal counsel for the Watermaster, and would update 
the TAC once that information had been obtained. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 2:24 PM. 
  

77



   

78



   

79



   

80



 
 

 

81



82



SUMMARY OF  
PURE WATER MONTEREY, AND   

SALINAS VALLEY AND  
MARINA  COAST WATER DISTRICT GROUNDWATER 

SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY ZOOM MEETINGS  
IN APRIL 2023 

Note: This is a synopsis of information from these meetings that may be of interest to the Seaside 
Basin Watermaster 

SVBGSA Groundwater TAC Meeting, April 18, 2023: 
Although I am not a member of this Committee I monitor their meetings and participate when 
there are items of interest to the Watermaster.  At this meeting one of the items on the agenda 
was an update on the development and initial findings of the Seawater Intrusion Model that 
Montgomery & Associates has been preparing for the SVBGSA.  It is intended to provide more 
accurate and more detailed information on seawater intrusion, and the model area includes the 
Seaside Basin.  Attached are two of the slides that were presented at this meeting (which I was 
unable to attend due to a scheduling conflict) showing how the model simulations compare to 
MCWRA’s seawater intrusion mapping, and what the model predicts as the extent of seawater 
intrusion up to the year 2070.  

I expressed my concerns to Derrik Williams of Montgomery & Associates about these slides 
showing seawater intrusion moving into the Seaside Basin in the future.  Mr. Williams responded  
to clarify that the Seawater Intrusion (SWI) model was primarily developed to assess impacts 
from potential projects in the 180/400-Foot Aquifer and Monterey Subbasins, and the focus of 
the calibration was on these two subbasins. MCWRA requested that the model be expanded to 
include all of MCWRA Zone 2C, and subsequently the model was expanded to include the 
Seaside subbasin. However, there was no seawater intrusion data in the Seaside subbasin and 
therefore it was not the focus of the model calibration.  

Because it was not the focus of the calibration, no effort was made to remove the simulated 
seawater intrusion from the Seaside basin. The simulated seawater intrusion will be removed 
from the Seaside basin in the next iteration of the model. He went on to say that models cannot 
estimate when seawater intrusion will be observed in the Seaside basin without knowing the 
current offshore extent of seawater intrusion. Because the offshore extent of seawater intrusion is 
unknown, no model can predict the potential timing of future seawater intrusion into the Seaside 
basin. A caveat will be included in future reports stating that this model should not be used to 
predict seawater intrusion in the Seaside basin. 

He also noted that neither the 180-Foot nor 400-Foot aquifers exist in the Seaside subbasin. 
Since the model focuses on seawater intrusion in the 180/400-Foot Aquifer Subbasin, the 

9
83



graphics presented at the GTAC meeting identified depth zones in the model according to the 
named aquifers in that subbasin. The model layers simulating the 180-Foot and 400-Foot 
aquifers extend into the Seaside subbasin, but the aquifers themselves do not extend into the 
Seaside subbasin.   Montgomery & Associates will try to make someone available at the June 
14th Watermaster TAC meeting to answer any questions about this. 

SVBGSA Advisory Committee Meeting, April 20, 2023: 
The items on the agenda for this meeting were all administrative in nature and did not impact the 
Seaside Basin, so I did not attend this meeting. 

SVBGSA Monterey Subbasin Implementation Committee Meeting, April 26, 2023: 
The agenda for this meeting mainly focused on the 2022 Annual Report on the Monterey 
Subbasin, and on the tier structure of fees to be collected from each of the subbasins (excluding 
the Seaside Subbasin). 

The fees do not impact the Watermaster as they are only applied in the other subbasins of the 
Salinas Valley Basin. 

The 2022 Annual Report showed a number of exceedances of Sustainable Management Criteria 
that were established in the Monterey Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan.  The attached 
PowerPoint slides that were presented at this meeting describe these. 

The timeline for implementation of the various projects and management activities is also shown 
in the attached PowerPoint slides. 

10
84



 

12
85



13
86



14
87



15
88



16
89



17
90



18
91



19
92



 

20
93



SUMMARY OF  
PURE WATER MONTEREY, AND   

SALINAS VALLEY AND  
MARINA  COAST WATER DISTRICT GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY 

AGENCY ZOOM MEETINGS  
IN MAY 2023 

Note: This is a synopsis of information from these meetings that may be of interest to the Seaside Basin 
Watermaster 

SVBGSA Special Joint Meeting of the 180/400, Eastside, and Monterey Subbasin Implementation 
Committees, May 3, 2023: 
Although I am not a member of this Committee I monitor their meetings and participate when there are 
items of interest to the Watermaster.  At this meeting the items on the agenda were related to the tiered 
rate structure that the SVBGSA plans to implement to fund its activities.  The Watermaster is not subject 
to those fees, so I did not attend this meeting. 

21

SUMMARY OF  
PURE WATER MONTEREY, AND   

SALINAS VALLEY AND  
MARINA  COAST WATER DISTRICT GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY 

AGENCY ZOOM MEETINGS  
IN JUNE 2023 

Note: This is a synopsis of information from these meetings that may be of interest to the Seaside Basin 
Watermaster 

SVBGSA Advisory Committee Meeting, June 15, 2023: 
The principal item on this Advisory Committee meeting agenda was discussion of the Proposed Tiered 
Fee Schedule that the SVBGSA Board will be considering adopting at its June 29, 2023 meeting.  Since 
this fee does not directly impact the Watermaster, I would not normally have attended this meeting.  
However, to count as attending one had to attend in person, not by Zoom.  The Advisory Committee, 
some years ago, adopted  a policy that if a member failed to attend meetings, they could be dropped from 
the Committee.  Therefore, in order to ensure that the Watermaster would continue to be a member, I 
attended this meeting in person.  For future meetings, if there are no items that directly impact the 
Watermaster, I will attempt to make arrangements to attend remotely, with certain conditions having to 
be fulfilled in order to comply with the Brown Act. 

Issues of interest at this meeting included: 
 •  The new Senior Consultant/General Manager of the SVBGSA is Piret Harmon, replacing 
Donna Meyers.  Sarah Hardgrave came on as a second Senior Advisor/Deputy General Manager, serving 
in that position along with Emily Gardner.
 •  Election of new Chair and Vice-Chair.  Curtis Weeks of the Arroyo Seco GSA, and Dennis 
Lebow, were elected as Chair and Vice-Chair respectively.

94



• Considerable grant money has thus far been obtained to help pay for GSA activities. Grant money  
will eventually no longer be available to use to help fund the GSA’s budgets.

• The proposed Tiered Fee Schedule has two tiers:
o Tier 1:  Groundwater Sustainability Fee for regulatory activities that pertain to all 

subbasins ($2.3 million)
o Tier 2:  Unique to each subbasin for activities that pertain to that subbasin, but do not 

pertain to other subbasins. ($1.2 million)
• For the Corral de Tierra subarea of the Monterey Subbasin, the fees for Tier 2 will total an 

estimated $76K.  This fee is expected to be allocated based on pumping quantities of users within 
that subarea.  This subarea has the highest fee amount of all of the subbasins within the SVBGSA. 

• Under the Tiered Fee Schedule Agriculture will constitute approximately 90% of the users, and All 
Others will constitute approximately 10% of the users.  Agricultural Users will be charged on a 
dollars-per-acre basis, and All Other Users will be charged on a dollars-per-connection basis.

• At its June 29th meeting the SVBGSA will do one of two things:
o Adopt a tiered fee structure such as the one being proposed, or
o Stay with the current non-tiered fee structure.

• At the Advisory Committee meeting there was divided support for, and opposition to, adopting the 
proposed Tiered Fee Structure.  The opinions expressed were fairly strong on both sides, 
indicating that the issue is rather controversial.

• There was brief discussion of the Advisory Committee Work Plan which the Board has approved, 
and the Groundwater Dependent Ecosystem Work Group which is still in the process of being 
formed. Advisory Committee members who offered to serve on that work group were Chris 
Bunn, Robin Lee, and Brian Frus. 

Monterey Peninsula Water Operations Stakeholders Group Meeting, June 28, 2023: 
This stakeholders group replaced the Seaside Water Quality and Operations stakeholders group that had 
been hosted by Monterey One Water.  Because all water operations affect each other, MPWMD began 
hosting this meeting to facilitate common understanding and operational planning efficiency for the Pure 
Water Monterey Project. 

Information provided at this meeting included: 
• PWM delivered 3,500 AF during the fiscal year ending in April 2023
• ASR banked 1,656 AF in WY 2022 and 2,963 AF in WY 2023
• Tracer study information:

o October 2021 tracer study successfully measured travel time from DIW-1 to the Paralta 
well

o October 2022 tracer study, as of mid-June 2023:
▪ DIW-4 tracer detected at the Ord Grove well after 7.5 months
▪ DIW-4 tracer not detected at the Seaside Muni 4 well
▪ DIW-3 tracer not detected at the Paralta well

o Travel times calculated during the time period September through November of 2022:
▪ From DIW-1 to the Paralta well ranged between 4.9 and 5.2 months
▪ From DIW-2 to the Paralta well ranged between 7.5 and 7.6 months
▪ From DIW-3 to ASR-3 and ASR-4 ranged between 6.7 and 6.8 months

o ASR-4 will be included in tracer sampling when the well is certified for municipal 
production

95



•  ASR-4 has a mercury removal treatment device installed and Cal Am expects it to be given the 
OK to begin being used as a production well in mid-July.
•  M1W is pursuing a Title 22 Engineering Report addendum to enable the PWM project to increase 
its yield.  It will probably take several more months to complete getting State approval of this.
•  Bidding is in progress for construction of the Pure Water Monterey Expansion project.
•  The next meeting of this group will be in late September 2023.

Monterey Subbasin GSP Implementation Committee Meeting, June 28, 2023: 
Items discussed at this meeting included: 
• DWR approved the Monterey Subbasin GSP with a list of Recommended Corrective Actions

(RCAs).  These pertained to getting more or better data to support the GSP, minimum thresholds
for chronic lowering of groundwater levels, and revising the definition of undesirable results for 
degraded water quality. 

• Committee members expressed some concern that the RCAs did not pertain to “solving the
problem” of chronic lowering of groundwater levels.

• There was an abbreviated presentation on the proposed tiered fee structure that was made at the
June 15th Advisory Committee meeting.  Committee members expressed some concern about the
high costs to be charged to users in the Monterey Subbasin under the proposed fee structure. 

23

• Concern was also expressed about the ability to achieve sustainability in the Monterey Subbasin
within the time frame required by the SGMA.

96



6 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF  
PURE WATER MONTEREY, AND   

SALINAS VALLEY AND  
MARINA  COAST WATER DISTRICT GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY 

AGENCY ZOOM MEETINGS  
IN JULY 2023 

Note: This is a synopsis of information from these meetings that may be of interest to the Seaside Basin 
Watermaster 

 
 
SVBGSA Groundwater TAC July 27, 2023: 
This meeting was held for Montgomery & Associates to provide an update on the Deep Aquifers study.  
Principal items discussed of interest to the Watermaster included: 

 Field studies are in progress to gather more data. 
 The water budget and draft management guidance will be developed later this year. 
 Today’s meeting was not to be a political discussion, but only to focus on technical issues. 
 There was a review of the definition of Deep Aquifers 

o They used several sources of “existing lines of evidence” i. e. various reference sources 
including data from MCWRA, data from DWR AEM, data from Thorup papers, and 
WCR 

o They a lateral extent map to show where the deep offer is believed to exist. 
o They re-ran the AEM survey with more sensitive equipment and got better results 
o They ground-truthed the AEM data to the extent possible. 

 They then went through a discussion of each of the seven areas that were evaluated 
 The Coastal Southwest Extent is the area within which the Seaside Groundwater Basin is located. 

o The geology in this area is complex. 
o They tried to correlate geologic layers within each of the adjacent subbasins including 

Pajaro, 180/400 foot, Monterey, and Seaside. 
o AEM data is not very good at detecting chloride levels below 3,000 mg/L. The 

interpretation can be confused with some other strata that is not seawater. 
o Low resistivity readings can also be indicative of clay layers, not necessarily seawater 

intrusion. 
 There are lots of data gaps making it difficult to interpret some of the results of the AEM data. 
 They used the best reasonable Deep Aquifers extent interpretation to develop the lateral extent 

map. 
 They are exploring remaining questions with the best available data. 
 They cannot determine whether or not aquifers extend out into the bay. The conclusion is the 

greatest threat of seawater intrusion is downward migration from the shallow aquifers that do 
extend into the bay and which overlie the deeper aquifers. 

 
 
 
 

97


	Blank Page.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page.pdf
	Blank Page




